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Director General's Message

DIRECTOR GENERAL’S 
MESSAGE

2000-2001 has been a watershed year 
for the Ministry for Culture & the 
Arts and its agencies, consolidating past 
efforts and achievements and working 
to implement the priorities of a new 
government.

In October 2000, Memoranda of Understanding were 
signed between the then Minister for the Arts, the 
Ministry, and the Art Gallery of Western Australia, 
the Western Australian Museum and the Library 
& Information Services of Western Australia. The 
Memoranda of Understanding acknowledged the 
statutory independence of the agencies in the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts and the role of 
the Ministry in facilitating the agencies to achieve 
their agreed outputs. I thank the Chairs and 
Chief Executive Ofcers of the respective agencies 
for their cooperation in formalising each of the 
Memoranda of Understanding.

Guiding principles have been established, which, in 
part, seek to unify the Ministry through respecting 
the independence, uniqueness and heritage of 
the portfolio agencies and at the same time, 
acknowledging the interdependencies that exist 
between them. The Memoranda of Understanding is 
a rst step to ensuring these principles are enshrined 
in the work and objectives of the Ministry.

A key priority for the Ministry is to create 
an environment in which arts and culture are 
appreciated within our community, and where the 
arts, in all its forms, are recognised as being 
essential to sustaining a healthy, creative and vibrant 
society.

In the eighteen months as Acting Director General 
and Director General, I have observed the positive 

inuence the arts exerts on our society, including in 
the areas of health, education and law and order. 

While we all can appreciate the importance of arts 
and culture in shaping our self-identity and our 
community collectively, I believe that the true value of 
the arts has not yet been fully realised.

There is a growing body of international evidence 
that demonstrates the value and importance of the 
arts in staunching the rapid escalation of costs 
in the areas of criminal justice, education and 
health. The Ministry has collated some of this 
research into a draft discussion paper, with a view 
to stimulating further research and understanding 
as to the importance and value of the arts in the 
achievement of the community to which we aspire.

I am keen for the Ministry and its agencies to develop 
strategies that encourage partnerships between the 
arts and the other sectors to realise the potential 
benets of integrating the arts with other disciplines. 
Some of these partnerships have already been 
established or identied. I am condent that the 
benets of these partnerships will be become evident 
in the coming year.

One of the key elements to integrating the arts within 
all facets of the community is to ensure accessibility 
and equity for every West Australian. It is vital that 
everyone in our community has access to all forms 
of arts products and can participate in the arts at 
all levels.

In this report, you will read about the achievements 
of the Ministry and its agencies in promoting greater 
equity and access, including:

• The partnership between ArtsWA and the 
Australia Council for the creation of an audience 
development position in the Pilbara region;

• The digitisation of over 6,000 images from the 
Battye Library’s Pictorial Collection that can 
be viewed online, improving access to these 
collections for remote users;
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Director General's Message - Letter of Transmittal

In 2001, the International Year of the Volunteer, it 
is extremely important that we acknowledge the 
contribution of the thousands of Western Australians 
who support arts and culture through their volunteer 
work. As part of this special year, the Art Gallery 
of Western Australia, the Library & Information 
Service of Western Australia and the Western 
Australian Museum have recognised the work of their 
volunteers and celebrated their contribution through 
various activities, some of which you can read about 
in this report.

As expressed earlier, art and cultural activities 
are, in addition to the well understood economic 
benets, essential for our well-being and have 
been demonstrated through considerable research 

- locally and across the world - to improve 
citizenship and educational and health outcomes. 
This, of course, translates into lower costs for health, 
education and law and order, being the aspirations of 
all who seek a better community.

Our challenge in the coming year is to pursue the 
attainment of that ‘better community’ through the arts.

ALASTAIR BRYANT
DIRECTOR GENERAL

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

To the Hon Sheila McHale MLA, Minister responsible 
for the Ministry for Culture & the Arts.

In accordance with Section 62 of the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 1985, I am pleased 
to submit for your information and presentation to 
Parliament the annual report of the Western Australian 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts for the year ending 30 
June 2001.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 
1985.

ALASTAIR BRYANT
DIRECTOR GENERAL

• The Western Australian Museum’s community 
based program, Alcoa FrogWAtch, reaching a 
membership of 5,400 people;

• Family Fun Days at the Art Gallery of Western 
Australia, featuring hands-on activities, trails and 
giveaways;

• The extension of the Perth Concert Hall lift to the 
basement carpark enabling improved disabled 
access;

• The introduction of a monthly email newsletter by 
ScreenWest that is distributed to over 3,500 email 
addresses, facilitating communication within both 
the emerging and professional sectors of the 
local industry. 

There have been many achievements by the Ministry 
and its agencies during the past year. The conduct of 
an extensive “New Tax and the Arts” education and 
information program across Western Australia; the 
opening of the Geraldton Museum; the production of 
two major lm drama projects worth approximately 
$9 million; the passing of the State Records Act 2000 
and the State Records (Consequential Provisions) 
Act 2000; the interim management, administration 
and operation of the Swan Bells; and the signicant 
Side by Side exhibition are documented in this report 
and represent the valuable work of the Ministry and 
its agencies.

I congratulate the agencies on their strategies to 
improve access for all West Australians, particularly 
those living in regional areas of our State. I am 
condent that a continued emphasis on promoting 
greater equity and access will provide benets 
not only for the community, but ultimately for the 
arts sector which will benet from operating in 
an environment that places a high value on the 
importance of art and culture to our society.

The 819 employees of the Ministry for Culture & 
the Arts bring skills, enthusiasm and professionalism 
to their work and I am proud of the contribution 
they make to the Ministry, and to the broader arts 
and cultural sector. I thank every ofcer who has 
contributed to the betterment of our community 
through their individual effort within the Ministry. 

  
4 
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Corporate Identity - Vision, Mission, Objectives

CORPORATE IDENTITY

The Ministry for Culture & the Arts

The Ministry for Culture & the Arts 
services the Minister for Culture and the 
Arts and incorporates the agencies which 
form the Arts portfolio.

The agencies of the Arts portfolio are the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts (incorporating 
ArtsWA), Art Gallery of Western Australia, the 
Library & Information Service of Western Australia, 
Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western 
Australian Museum. The agencies, with the 
exception of the Ministry, are statutory authorities 
with boards who report directly to the Minister for 
Culture and the Arts.

Organisational Structure

Our Vision

A Western Australian society which is culturally rich, 
artistically inspired and intellectually stimulated.

Our Mission

To provide leadership, support and services to 
ensure that current and future West Australians 
are informed and have access to a diverse 
range of innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural 
experiences.

Our Objectives

The Ministry for Culture & the Arts has identied 
three key objectives for the organisation, each 
with a number of strategies to help it achieve its 
mission. These strategies underpin all initiatives of 
the Ministry for Culture & the Arts.

MINISTER FOR CULTURE AND THE ARTS

DIRECTOR GENERAL

MINISTRY FOR CULTURE
& THE ARTS

AGENCIES STATUTORY BOARDS

ArtsWA Art Gallery Art Gallery Board

Planning, Policy 
& Marketing

The Library & Information 
Service Western Australia

The Library Board of  
Western Australia

Human Resources Perth Theatre Trust
Perth Theatre Trust  

Board

Financial and Business 
Services

ScreenWest ScreenWest Board

The Western Australian  
Museum

The Western Australian  
Museum Board
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Corporate Identity - A Snapshot

Objective One

The creation and provision of access to a diverse 
range of knowledge, information, arts and cultural 
experiences.

Strategies

• Undertaking research and creating knowledge, 
ideas, arts and cultural experiences

• Providing a diverse range of knowledge, 
information, arts and cultural experiences and 
opportunities

• Developing new audiences and clients through 
the use of new technologies

• Informing and educating Western Australians so 
they can make informed choices about their 
heritage

Objective Two

Development and management of the State’s natural, 
cultural and documentary collections.

Strategies

• Acquiring material which is representative of 
Western Australia’s natural, cultural and 
documentary heritage

• Acquiring material which supports Western 
Australia’s educational, social, intellectual, 
economic and recreational needs

• Documenting, preserving, maintaining and 
storing collections for future generations

Objective Three

Support and development of the arts, screen and 
cultural industries in Western Australia.

Strategies

• Funding and programme development

• Policy development

• Industry development

• Provision of venues

A snapshot of the Ministry for 
Culture & the Arts

• In 2000-2001, there were 819 employees of the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts

• The total budget appropriated to the Ministry 
for Culture & the Arts for 2000-2001 was 
$70,391,000.



Business Support Units
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Business Support Units - Achievements & Highlights

ACHIEVEMENTS AND 
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE 
BUSINESS SUPPORT UNITS OF 
THE MINISTRY FOR CULTURE 
& THE ARTS

The Business Support Units of the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts are 
the Planning, Policy & Marketing Division, 
Financial and Business Services and 
Human Resources Division. They provide 
leadership, support and services to the 
Ministry agencies, and assist with the 
development and promotion of the arts 
and cultural industry in Western Australia. 

The Business Support Units provide the Ministry 
agencies with strategic planning, internal services, 
human resources and nancial management 
services.

Achievements and highlights of the Business Support 
Units during 2000-2001 include:

• Signing the Memoranda of Understanding 
between the then Minister for the Arts and 
the Director General and the Chairs and Chief 
Executive Ofcers of the Art Gallery of Western 
Australia, the Library & Information Service of 
Western Australia and the Western Australian 
Museum

• Transferring payroll services from Financial and 
Business Services to the Human Resources 
Division

• Reaching an “in-principle” agreement with unions 
for a new Enterprise Bargaining Agreement

• Developing a generic Workplace Agreement 
that introduced common terms and conditions 
throughout the Ministry

• Locating a human resource consultant to the 
Western Australian Museum to assist with 
the coordination and implementation of human 
resource strategies and provide human resource 
advice to Museum staff

• Successfully implementing the GST and ensuring 
that all systems, including the nancial reporting 
system, were changed to reect the requirements 
of the Business Activity Statement

• Developing and publishing Building Community 
Through the Arts

• Drafting a discussion paper on the extrinsic value 
of the arts

• Providing administrative and marketing support, 
expertise and advice to the Swan Bells 
Foundation

• Partnering the City of Perth in an arts branding 
campaign

• Arts Edge being selected as a model of 
best practice in arts-education by the Australia 
Council

• Convening meetings with Perth Cultural Centre 
stakeholders to address safety and security 
issues

• Preparing a Budget submission for consideration 
by Treasury in the 2001-2002 Budget for an 
increase in recurrent and capital funding to 
maintain buildings under the Ministry’s control
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Business Support Units - Director General

Office of the Director General

Director General:
Alastair Bryant

Executive Ofcer:
Jackie Lipiec

Ministerial Liaison Ofcer:
Anne Morris

Administration Assistant:
Rhonda Heales
(part-time)

Secretary/Admin Ofcer:
Karen Riley
(on secondment to Ofce of Deputy Premier from 
mid-April)

Acting Secretary/Admin Ofcer:
Carol Power 
(secondment from mid-April)

Alastair Bryant was appointed to the role 
of Director General in November 2000. 
The Director General is accountable 
to the Minister for Public Sector 
Management on all Government reporting 
requirements for the Ministry for Culture 
& the Arts. 

His role encompasses:

• advocacy within Government for all the Ministry’s 
agencies; 

• resourcing the agencies;

• supporting the Minister in the delivery of 
Government policy to the community. 

He is also responsible for establishing and 
maintaining the working relationship between the 
Ministry’s agencies, which was initially achieved 
through the signing of a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the then Minister for the Arts, 
the Chairs of the Boards of the Art Gallery, Library 
and Museum Trustees, the Director General, and the 
Chief Executive Ofcer of those three agencies.

The Director General’s Secretariat was created 
in February 2001. The unit provides Ministerial 
co-ordination on behalf of the Ministry and its 
agencies; administrative support within the Director 
General’s ofce, Planning and Policy and Marketing 
Division; and undertakes special projects when 
required.

Ministerial Services Effectiveness 
Indicator

 1999/2000 2000/2001

Number of Ministerials 
administered by the Ministry 1094 1668

Number of Ministerials 
requiring a written response 
by the Minister 593 526

Percentage responded to 
within 7 days 81% 71%

Percentage less than 
5 days overdue 14% 24%

Percentage more than 
5 days overdue 5% 5%

The above table relates to the efciency with 
which the Ministry provided advice to the Minister’s 
ofce. The number of Ministerials includes only 
those that required a written response to or by the 
Minister. The Ministry has a target of answering this 
correspondence within seven days. In some cases, 
however, delays occur in obtaining information from 
other sources.
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Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

PLANNING, POLICY AND 
MARKETING DIVISION

Director:
Ellis Grifths

Number of staff: 10

The Planning, Policy and Marketing 
Division is responsible for providing 
support to the Director General. In 
doing so, the Division coordinates work 
across the Ministry agencies and provides 
consultancy services. The Division also 
interacts directly with the arts industry 
through policy development and strategic 
projects, and promoting the value of 
the arts.

Late in 2000, the Director General approved the 
amalgamation of the Planning and Policy Division 
with the Public Relations and Marketing Unit. The 
Division adopted a teams-based approach to project 
management, which has increased opportunities 
for staff to share and develop their skills. At the 
same time, the Director General established a 
Director General’s Secretariat and transferred the 
two support staff and the Ministerial Liaison Ofcer 
into this area from the Planning and Policy Division.

The Planning, Policy and Marketing Division has four 
key objectives:

• Ministerial support - To provide effective and 
efcient support to the Minister for Culture and 
the Arts

• Policy advice and development - To provide 
policy advice to the Director General and to 
coordinate development of policy with Ministry 
wide implications

• Planning and coordination - To provide advice 
to the Director General on the operations of the 
Ministry and to coordinate Ministry wide capital 
works programs and projects

• Promoting the value of culture and the arts - 
to promote the value of culture and the arts to the 
Western Australian community

Policy advice and development
Since the election of the Government in February 
2001, the Division has been coordinating the 
development of implementation plans for the 
Government’s arts policy.

Contemporary Music Policy

The Division has lead responsibility for the 
development of the Contemporary Music Policy, the 
largest single commitment in the Government’s arts 
policy. Work has commenced on establishing the 
Contemporary Music Taskforce and the recruitment 
of a Senior Policy Ofcer – Contemporary Music.

The Value of the Arts Discussion 
Paper

At the request of the Director General, an internal 
discussion paper titled The Extrinsic Values of the 
Arts: A Body of Evidence has been prepared which 
brings together national and international research 
demonstrating how arts and culture contribute to 
community well being. The paper focuses primarily 
on the areas of justice, health and education and is 
intended to inform future policy development in the 
arts and government, generally.

Regional Policy Development

During the past twelve months the Ministry has 
continued to develop a Regional Policy. Staff have 
participated on and provided support to the Regional 
Services Committee, attended the Regional Round 
Table meeting, and established an e-group and 
interactive calendar of visits to coordinate travel to 
the regions.

Over the next six months, the draft policy will 
be released for widespread public comment and 
discussion. The policy will be used to inform and 
drive the Ministry’s regional work and development.
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Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

Building Community Through the Arts

In January 2000, the then Minister for the Arts 
established a Ministerial Arts Advisory Council. The 
Council met for the last time in September 2000. 
The document Building Community Through the Arts: 
An Eight Year Strategy collated the deliberations of 
some of the Council’s work and also brought together 
the results of Ministry planning in a number of key 
areas including capital works.

Building Community Through the Arts: An Eight Year 
Strategy outlined a strategy for building a sense of 
community using the arts in Western Australia. The 
objectives and key outcomes described in the report 
were designed to enhance the prole of culture and 
arts in the community. 

The report was published on the Ministry’s website 
and distributed widely throughout the arts sector.

Cultural Ministers’ Council

The Ministry supports Western Australia’s 
participation in the Cultural Ministers’ Council and 
its various committees and working parties. The 
Council met in Sydney in August 2000 and 
concluded their deliberations with an agreement on a 
funding package for the performing arts companies 
examined by the Major Performing Arts Inquiry. 
Other business included:

• a decision to commission an examination 
of the factors inuencing the position of 
Australia’s small-to-medium sized performing 
arts organisations

• a decision to commission a paper on the 
important role of public broadcasting 

• commissioning a number of statistics projects

• noting a progress report on the work of the 
Heritage Collections Council

• considering progress on the work of the Return of 
Indigenous Cultural Property Programme

• considering a nal progress report from the New 
Technologies Working Party on issues for the 
cultural sector

• a brieng on the Australia Council’s strategy 
Promoting the Value of the Arts

Western Australia chairs the working party on the 
small-to-medium sized performing Arts Companies 
and the Statistics Working Group.

Cultural Ministers’ Council Statistics 
Working Group 

The Statistics Working Group (SWG) operates under 
the guidance of the Cultural Ministers’ Council 
Standing Committee. The group was established to 
improve policy and decision-making in the cultural 
industries and government by enhancing the 
range, quality, availability and use of appropriate 
statistics. In 2001, Director General, Alastair Bryant 
became the working group’s convenor. The group 
consists of representatives from the Commonwealth 
Government, State and Territory governments, the 
Australian Film Commission, the Australian Bureau of 
Statistics, the Australia Council and the New Zealand 
Government. 

Perth Convention and Exhibition Centre

The Ministry continued to be represented on the 
Perth Convention and Exhibition Centre Taskforce 
by Director General, Alastair Bryant and on the 
Technical Committee by Director Planning and Policy, 
Ellis Grifths. As reported in last year’s annual report, 
the proposed exible performance space did not 
meet the specications of the Request for Proposal, 
however the Ministry will continue to work with the 
Perth Convention and Exhibition Centre Project to 
ensure that the space can be effectively used by 
local companies and for the benet of the arts 
generally.

Information and research

The Ministry provides a responsive information and 
reference service for staff of the Ministry and 
for the wider arts community. The Information 
Ofcer prepares a number of lists. The 2001 
Art Competition and Festivals Booklet lists contact 
details and awards for the major art prizes, art 
competitions and festivals in Western Australia. 
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Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

The festival list, together with the quarterly Arts 
Conferences and Seminars list, is available on the 
ArtsWA home page at www.imago.com.au/artswa 
These lists were made available on line this year to 
increase accessibility and usage. 

A quarterly acquisitions list and subject 
bibliographies are also prepared on request and 
distributed to arts agencies and interested 
community members. 

Key areas of research have focussed on the value of 
the arts, the role of the arts in social inclusion and 
contemporary music.

Planning and coordination

Capital Works

The Division is responsible for coordinating the 
Ministry’s annual Capital Works Budget Submission 
including the 10 Year Capital Investment Plan. 

Perth Cultural Centre Redevelopment 
and Security Issues

Since the early 1990s there has been considerable 
consultation regarding the redevelopment of the 
Perth Cultural Centre and the associated security 
costs. 

In September 2000, the Perth Cultural Centre 
Comprehensive Redevelopment Plan was completed 
and in February 2001, the Perth Cultural Centre 
Stage 1- Redevelopment Implementation Strategy 
was produced. The plans are being considered in the 
context of wider urban planning and re-development 
options.

The Ministry convened meetings of Perth Cultural 
Centre stakeholders in January and April 2001 to 
address safety and security issues. Representatives 
from the Police Department, the Noongar Patrol, 
Safer WA, City of Perth and Central TAFE attended 
these meetings which were set up to develop a 
coordinated response in addressing the issues. A 
number of practical measures have already been 
implemented.

Relocation of the West Australian 
Symphony 

With the move of the Australian Broadcasting 
Commission from its Adelaide Terrace property, the 
West Australian Symphony (WASO) will require new 
administration and rehearsal space. The Ministry has 
worked closely with WASO on possible options for 
relocation.

A WASO Accommodation Working Party was 
convened and chaired by the Director General. 
The Working Party considered the options for 
development and released a draft report for 
comment to key stakeholders.

In the next year, additional work will be undertaken 
in investigating the range of options for the future 
accommodation of the WASO. These options will be 
considered by the Minister.

Master Plan for Redevelopment of 
Theatre Venues

The Ministry commissioned Jones Coulter Young 
in association with theatre consultant Graham 
Walne to undertake a study, Capital Works, Capital 
Venues: A Master Plan for enhancing Perth’s 
existing performance venues and for shaping 
future developments (August 2000). The Master 
Plan reects the necessity to rectify immediate 
problems with existing venues to meet the needs 
of both the audience and arts companies. The plan 
identies four stages of implementation which will be 
considered along with other capital works priorities.

Joint Storage Facility
As reported in the 1999-2000 annual report, the 
Ministry made a submission under the State 
Government Capital Works Program to obtain funds 
to establish a joint storage facility for agencies in the 
Perth Cultural Centre. This application was made as 
part of a package to address the redevelopment of 
the Perth Cultural Centre and the Western Australian 
Museum facility. The application was not successful 
and we will continue to investigate options to address 
storage issues, as part of our capital works planning 
program to be undertaken during 2001-2002.
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Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

Strategic Building Maintenance Funding

This program area is designed to ensure that all 
premises under the control of the Ministry, including 
signicant heritage buildings, are maintained at a 
high operational standard for the benet of the 
community.

The Ministry prepared a budget submission for 
consideration by Treasury in the 2001-2002 budget 
process, requesting an increase in recurrent funding 
and capital funding to maintain the buildings under 
the Ministry’s control. 

Arts Edge

Arts Edge, the Ministry for Culture & the Arts’ 
partnership project in aesthetic education with the 
Ministry of Education, has delivered a range of 
arts education activities and resources this year. 
Teachers and students participate in drama, dance, 
music, media, visual arts and multi-arts workshops 
with professional artists and organisations. The 
continued success of Arts Edge this year has seen 
its selection as a model of best practice in arts 
education by the Australia Council.

During the year some Arts Edge workshops were 
extended to the wider community, a successful 
development and one that will be expanded in the 
next year. While teachers and students have been 
the major participants, scout leaders, parents, youth 
workers, and arts and cultural enthusiasts have also 
enjoyed the workshops. 

As well as the four-day aesthetic education program, 
weekend and one-day specialist workshops and 
school-based professional development workshops, 
Arts Edge has coordinated a range of highly 
successful artist/teacher partnerships in schools 
where students work with artists, culminating in a 
performance or exhibition. This work has included 
music concerts, playbuilding, script development and 
performance as well as an extensive tour of the 
north-west by student performers from John Curtin 
College of the Arts and Hedland Senior High School. 

The development of the ArtsEdge e-group has been 
a key achievement this year. Over 200 members now 
receive regular updates on cultural and arts activities 
as well as arts education curriculum information. 

Arts Edge will be expanding in the next year with the 
establishment of a coordinator position in Broome, 
with others in the Pilbara and Gascoyne to follow. 

City of Lights project

During 2000, staff in Planning, Policy and Marketing 
worked on the City of Lights project. The project 
investigated opportunities to build on Perth’s 
reputation as a city of lights and explored ways 
to light up major city buildings and environmental 
features. A Reference Group of key stakeholders 
was established and chaired by the Director General. 

A lighting master plan was commissioned. The tender 
was advertised in The West Australian newspaper 
and eleven submissions were received. A selection 
panel was convened, with Vision Design Studio 
being selected as the successful tenderer. A lighting 
master plan was prepared identifying key sites for 
lighting installations.

In addition artists were short listed and 
commissioned to develop proposals for lighting 
installations at key sites in the city area, including 
Kings Park escarpment, city skyscrapers, the river 
and the Perth Cultural Centre.

The project did not proceed because of a lack of 
funding. 

Liaison with Perth International Arts 
Festival – Celestial City

Division staff have worked closely with the Perth 
International Arts Festival to establish the Celestial 
City project. The Celestial City project establishes 
the Perth Cultural Centre as the hub of the Perth 
Festival in 2002. Building on the success of the 
Watershed and Grapevine venues, the project would 
bring the best in arts and culture, and showcase 
them throughout the Perth Cultural Centre precinct 
during the Festival period.
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Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

This project is the outcome of a concerted effort 
by Ministry and Festival staff to develop a closer 
strategic partnership between the two organisations.

Disability Services

The Ministry is committed to ensuring people with 
disabilities, their families and their carers are able 
to access the range of services provided. The 
Disability Services Planning Committee meets every 
quarter and works to improve and implement the 
Ministry’s Disability Services Plan. The Ministry has 
also undertaken to ensure people with disabilities are 
given the opportunity to take part in a consultative 
process to shape its services and objectives. 

Achievements for 2000-2001 under our current 
disability services plan include:

• Completing capital works at King Street Art 
Centre to resolve the disability access issues at 
a cost of $244,452.

• Finalising recommendations and drawings for 
improving the accessibility of the Perth Institute 
of Contemporary Arts. The estimated cost of 
making the access improvements is $600 000. 
Securing these funds has been accorded high 
priority and a submission has been made for the 
2001-2002 budget.

• Initiating the process for costing access 
recommendations for Arts House, Perth Cultural 
Centre Plaza, Old Customs House and Spare 
Parts Puppet Theatre. 

• An Executive Ofcer from DADAA (WA) Inc. 
joining the Ministry’s Disability Services Planning 
Committee. 

• An Ofcer from ScreenWest joining the Disability 
Services Planning Committee, making agency 
representation on the committee complete.

• Holding a public consultation and feedback 
session with members of the disability community 
in June 2001 at the Art Gallery of Western 
Australia. 

• Making a commitment to hold at least one public 
consultation session every year inviting staff from 
every agency within the Ministry. 

Promoting the value of culture 
and the arts
A number of initiatives were developed and 
implemented during 2000-2001 as part of an overall 
objective to promote the value of the arts to the 
Western Australian community.

Many of these initiatives involved collaboration and 
partnerships with local government, the media and 
the arts sector.

In addition to specic initiatives to promote the value 
of the arts, the Division was also responsible for 
providing public relations and marketing consultancy 
and support to the Swan Bells Foundation. Support 
was also provided, to a lesser extent, to the agencies 
and arts sector through the provision of advice and 
the facilitation of media and marketing opportunities.

Marketing Reference Group

In February 2001, a Marketing Reference Group was 
established and charged with developing strategies 
to promote the value of the arts. The group 
consisted of professionals with skills, expertise and 
experience in media, promotions, marketing and 
market research in the arts and business sectors.

The Marketing Reference Group are:

David Hides, Hides Consulting Group – Chair

Sandra Devahasdin, Devahasdin PR & 
Promotions 

David Gerrand, ArtsVoice

Michael Herrmann, Manifest

Caron Irwin, Ministry for Culture & the Arts

Fiona Kalaf, Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Nick Miller, The West Australian

Olwyn Williams, Spare Parts Puppet Theatre

The group met regularly to identify and develop 
appropriate strategies. A nal report will be delivered 
in the coming months. 



Ministry For Culture & The Arts: Annual Report 2000 – 2001 15 

Business Support Units - Planning, Policy & Marketing

Joint Promotional Campaign

In partnership with the City of Perth, the Ministry 
for Culture & the Arts invested in an arts branding 
campaign to increase awareness of the diversity of 
art and culture and encourage the community to 
participate in art and cultural activities in the City of 
Perth precinct. 

The campaign ran for ten weeks from 5 October 
2000 and featured a commercial which aired on 
all commercial television stations, and a full-page 
advertisement in The West Australian every Friday. 
The arts sector was involved in the initial conceptual 
development of the promotion and was consulted at 
various stages throughout the campaign. Private and 
funded arts and cultural organisations in the City of 
Perth precinct were invited to submit advertisements 
which were published at no cost to the organisation 
in the full page advertisement in The West Australian 
each Friday. 

Market research on the campaign was 
commissioned by the City of Perth and conducted by 
Market Equity. 

State Arts Sponsorship Scheme 
Awards and the Business and the 
Arts Dinner

The eighth State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards 
was organised by the Ministry for Culture & the Arts 
in 2000, with the award winners being announced 
at the Business and the Arts Dinner (funded by 
Australian Capital Equity) in November 2000.

More than 120 nominations were received for 
the 2000 State Arts Sponsorship Scheme Awards, 
acknowledging business and individual sponsorship 
and support of arts and culture in Western Australia. 
The nominations represented more than $3.6 million 
in cash and in-kind sponsorship. 

The winners of the prestige awards were Wesfarmers 
Limited through Wesfarmers Arts, Thumbprint 
Australia, Hamersley Iron Pty Ltd, Mrs Janet Holmes 
a Court through Heytesbury Pty Ltd, Fremantle 
Football Club and Mr David Hides.

Website

Cultureandarts, the Ministry for Culture & the Arts’ 
website, was launched on 26 June 2000, providing a 
portal to arts and culture in Western Australia.

There were 18,005 visits to Cultureandarts at 
www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au between 1 July 2000 
and 30 June 2001, with an average of 1,500 visits 
per month.

A review of the functionality and objectives of the 
website is currently being conducted to consider its 
effectiveness during the past year and its future role.

Swan Bells

The Ministry for Culture & the Arts assumed the 
management of the Swan Bells from the Western 
Australian Tourism Commission during the reporting 
period. Staff of the Marketing Division were the 
contact for the media, marketing and promotion 
of the Swan Bells. In this role, the Division has 
managed media and marketing enquiries regarding 
the Swan Bells; organised a promotional event to 
celebrate the 100,000th visitor to the Swan Bells; 
and acted as a consultant to the Swan Bells 
Foundation.

The Ministry has also provided administrative support 
and coordination to the Swan Bells Foundation 
through the provision of the services of an Executive 
Ofcer.

“Promoting the Value of the Arts” 
Forum in conjunction with the 
Australia Council 

In February 2001 the Ministry for Culture & the 
Arts, in conjunction with the Australia Council, held 
round table discussions and a public forum at the 
Subiaco Theatre Centre. The forum and discussions 
were part of a series of planning days convened by 
the Australia Council around Australia. The group 
discussions held in the morning were focussed on 
four distinct topics: Education and the Arts; Arts-
Media; Involving the Arts Sector; and Rebranding 
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the Arts. The afternoon public forum presented an 
account of the Australia Council’s work on the issues 
identied from their research into Australian attitudes 
towards the arts. It also provided an opportunity 
for participants to give feedback on strategies for 
promoting the value of the arts.

Strategic Marketing Fund

The Ministry was responsible for administering 
and managing the Strategic Marketing Grants. 
Organisations and individuals were invited to apply 
for a total of $55,000 to assist with the marketing 
of special or innovative projects that would promote 
the value of the arts and encourage participation 
and involvement either across artforms or across 
organisations involved in the same artform.

Members of the selection panel were: 

Caron Irwin, A/Manager Public Relations and 
Marketing, Ministry for Culture & the Arts – 
Chair

Paul Tye, Sponsorship Coordinator, Healthway

Olwyn Williams, General Manager, Spare Parts 
Puppet Theatre

Relevant ArtsWA artform project ofcers were also 
consulted as part of the process.

Three projects were successful in receiving funding. 
“The Milkmaids” created a partnership with Harvey 
Fresh to design labels with art messages for 1litre 
milk bottles. 

The labels appeared on milk bottles across the State 
from the end of March to the beginning of May 2001. 
A second stage of this project, which will see art 
labels on orange juice containers, is currently being 
negotiated.

DADAA (WA) Inc. will be producing billboards, with 
the art expected to be seen in the second half 
of 2001. The third project involved funding for 
developing a pilot television program on the arts for a 
commercial television station. 
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HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION

Director: 
Eric Isailovic 

Staff: 13 

Staffing
EMPLOYMENT 
TYPE BY GENDER 99-00 00-01 99-00 00-01

 F F M M

PERMANENT F/TIME 224 222 178 163

PERMANENT P/TIME 90 88 15 18

FIXED TERM F/TIME 40 44 29 32

FIXED TERM P/TIME 22 22 8 5

CASUAL 177 195 54 30

SESSIONAL 0 0 0 0

OTHER (TRAINEE) 1 0 0 0

TOTAL 554 571 284 248

Overview

The staff of the Human Resources Division 
have played a signicant role in supporting 
the development of the Ministry. By working 
co-operatively with customers, Human Resources is 
continuing to establish strong business relationships 
with agencies and other divisions. This has resulted 
in the achievement of a number of signicant 
outcomes for the Ministry.

Human Resources Infrastructure

A Human Resource Co-ordinator has been stationed 
at the Western Australian Museum to assist with the 
coordination and implementation of human resource 
strategies and provide advice to Museum staff. This 
position remains a part of the Human Resources 
Division, with a focus on Museum operations, and 
has direct input to the development of strategic 
human resource and operational matters.

The Division was restructured to allow for the 
integration of the payroll and leave management 
functions. The restructuring was effected 

successfully and all members of the Division are 
working together to improve service delivery and 
productivity.

Employee Relations

The Division developed a Workplace Bargaining 
Model which provided the framework for workplace 
and enterprise negotiations. The Division also 
ensured that the process was communicated to staff 
and that the agencies were consulted. 

Enterprise bargaining negotiations resulted in the 
Ministry and respondent Unions reaching “in 
principle“ agreement on new terms and conditions 
for approximately 780 salaried and wages staff. A 
generic workplace agreement was also developed 
to replace a variety of individual agreements that 
existed within the Ministry. A change to Government 
wages policy saw the introduction of the Wages and 
Parity Policy and as a result, the Ministry’s enterprise 
and workplace agreements did not proceed to 
registration.

Workforce Planning and Development

The introduction of a fully integrated Human 
Resource Management System that provides 
extensive functionality for the management of all 
tasks associated with personnel, administration and 
payroll is a priority for the Division. A review 
of the current system and options available has 
commenced and will continue into 2001-2002. 

The Ministry is committed to providing employment 
opportunities for Aboriginal people. The Western 
Australian Museum has facilitated the establishment 
of the “Enhancing Aboriginal Participation in Cultural 
Industries Committee” which is comprised of the 
Director General, representatives from each of the 
agencies, Human Resource Division, Ministry of 
Education, TAFE and the Department of Aboriginal 
Affairs.

Several traineeship opportunities have been 
identied and will be progressed during 2001-2002.
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To prepare for the introduction of the new Public 
Sector Standards from 1 July 2001, the Division 
co-ordinated several staff briengs to explain the 
nature and impact of the changes. 

Human resource policies and procedures are being 
reviewed to ensure compliance with the new 
standards.

Employee Assistance Program

The Ministry provides an Employee Assistance 
Program which offers free, condential counselling 
to all employees and their immediate families. 
Employees can self-refer for counselling. During 
the year, the Ministry engaged the services of the 
contracted agency to provide grievance resolution 
and critical incident counselling. 

A total of 31 staff accessed the Employee Assistance 
Program during 2000-2001.

Achievements

• Provided Member Investment Choice Seminars 
to ensure that employees are fully informed of 
their superannuation changes, which become 
effective from 1 July 2001.

• Implemented automation of reporting for 
collection of data in meeting the reporting 
requirements of Government Superannuation 
Board (GESB) and Ministry of the Premier 
& Cabinet for Minimum Obligatory Information 
Requirements (MOIR).

• Developed a human resource page on the 
Ministry’s website to include advertised 
vacancies and allow applicants to access 
recruitment information online. Further 
development to allow applicants to apply for 
vacancies online is underway.

• Reviewed the classication review process at the 
Western Australian Museum which resulted in a 
more streamlined process for staff classication 
and introduced an internal appeal process. 
Information sessions were presented to Museum 
staff to increase awareness and understanding of 
the process.

• Provided staff briengs on the new Public Sector 
Standards.

• Revision of Equal Employment Opportunity 
related policies including grievance, harassment 
and sexual harassment.

• Training in disability awareness has been 
programmed for Ministry employees at the Law 
Chambers.
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS 
SERVICES

Chief Financial Ofcer:
Ross Palmer 

Staff: 30

The Division is responsible for providing 
the following services across the Ministry:

• Financial Management and Reporting

• Financial and Accounting Services Bureau

• Contracts, Purchasing and Asset Management

• Administrative Support 

• PC and Network Support 

• Records Information Management (Law 
Chambers building only)

The Financial and Business Services 
Division has service delivery agreements 
(SLAs) between the Chief Financial 
Officer and the Chief Executives of 
the Art Gallery of Western Australia, 
ArtsWA, ScreenWest, The Library Board 
of Western Australia and the Western 
Australian Museum.

The SLAs provide a transparent and accountable 
basis for the provision of a wide range of services. 
They reect the priorities and services required 
by each agency and set out the obligations and 
performance criteria relating to each party of the 
SLA. 

During the year, some structural changes were made 
to the Division to ensure that the group continued 
to provide a high standard of service delivery to the 
clients. These changes were the result of a planning 
day involving all Division staff and an independent 
review of the Division’s role and responsibilities. The 
major change was aligning payroll services with 

Human Resources. Some minor changes were made 
in the other areas of this Division to ensure that the 
group continued to provide a high standard of service 
delivery to the clients.

The Ministry successfully implemented the GST, 
ensuring that all systems, including the nancial 
reporting system, were changed to reect the 
requirements of the Business Activity Statement. The 
system has been successfully reviewed by both the 
Auditor General and the Australian Taxation Ofce.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT 
WRITTEN LAW AND PUBLIC 
SECTOR POLICIES 

Legislation

The Ministry for Culture & the Arts was established 
on 20 May 1997 under Section 35 of the Public 
Sector Management Act.

The Ministry services the Minister for Culture 
and the Arts and incorporates the six agencies 
which form the Arts Portfolio. These agencies are 
the Ministry for Culture & the Arts (incorporating 
ArtsWA), Art Gallery of Western Australia, the 
Library & Information Service of Western Australia, 
Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western 
Australian Museum.

The efforts of each agency contribute to the 
effectiveness of the Ministry, and will help the 
Ministry achieve its vision of a Western Australian 
society which is culturally rich, artistically inspired 
and intellectually stimulated.

The Ministry operates under the provisions of 
the Public Sector Management Act 1994. In the 
performance of its functions, the Ministry complies 
with the following relevant written laws:
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Disability Services Act 1993

Equal Opportunity Act 1984-1992

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Industrial Relations Act 1979

Lotteries Commission Act 1990

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993

Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984

State Supply Commission Act 1991

Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation Amendment 
Act (No.2) 1992

Workplace Agreements Act 1993

The Minister for Culture and the Arts also administers 
the following Acts relating to the statutory authorities 
within the Arts Portfolio: 

Art Gallery Act 1959

Perth Theatre Trust Act 1979-1981

The Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951-83, 
1979-1981

Museum Act 1969-1984

The Ministry has, to the best of my knowledge, 
complied with the requirements of the law, including 
the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, and 
exercised controls to provide reasonable assurance 
that the receipt and expenditure of moneys, the 
acquisition and disposal of public property, and 
incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions.

I am not aware of any circumstances which render 
the particulars included in this statement misleading 
or inaccurate.

The 2000-2001 annual report incorporates a full 
nancial report for the appropriation under Division 
59 of the 2000-2001 State Budget.

ArtsWA does not have a statutory requirement to 
produce a separate annual report. A full report of 
their activities is included in this report. All other 
agencies have a statutory requirement to produce 
separate annual reports and this report includes a 
brief summary of their respective achievements in 
2000-2001.

Occupational Safety Health

Management of the agencies located in the Law 
Chambers building are committed to ensuring that all 
employees are safe from injuries and risks to their 
health while they are at work.

The Law Chambers Occupational Safety Health 
(OSH) committee meets regularly and has 
contributed to the development of a Risk 
Management plan. A comprehensive OSH Policy and 
Procedure Manual has been developed to support 
line managers in meeting their OSH obligations and 
to assist with implementation of OSH strategies.

Workers’ Compensation and 
Rehabilitation
 1998-99 1999-2000 2000-2001

Frequency 

Rate 70.45 0 5.82

LTI*/disease 
claims 11 17 11.64

Estimated cost 
of claims/$100 
of wage roll $12.38 $1.42 $0.08

Contribution 
(premium rate) 1.11 1.09 2.11

Rehab. 
Success rate N/A N/A N/A

(*LTI – Long term illness)

There has been a continual improvement of workers’ 
compensation performance as evidenced by a 
decrease in the LTI/disease claims and a decrease in 
the estimated cost of claims/$100 of wage roll. This 
has been inuenced by the following:

• Strong commitment to rehabilitation from 
managers and employees;

• Commitment to a collaborative method of 
managing cases from managers;

• Further streamlining of claims management and 
rehabilitation programs overall.
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Freedom of Information

The Ministry supports Freedom of Information 
services to all sections of the community, including 
the public, the media and Members of Parliament. 
One Freedom of Information application was 
received during 2000-2001. The information was 
provided as requested. There are no outstanding 
Freedom of Information requests.

Risk Identification and Management

Risk Management has been supported by a policy 
and procedures document for those agencies of the 
Ministry located within the Law Chambers building. 
A risk management co-ordination committee has 
identied and rated risk activities and developed a 
risk register. Risk action plans have been developed 
and implemented where appropriate.

Equal Employment Opportunity

During 2000-2001 the Ministry continued to progress 
the initiatives in the Equal Employment Opportunity 
(EEO) Plan. The plan includes the following 
strategies:

• EEO and Diversity outcomes be incorporated into 
the Corporate Plan and Human Resources Plan;

• Coordination of training for Grievance Ofcers 
and supervisors/managers;

• Inclusion of EEO and diversity awareness 
statements in all new duty statements.

There were no EEO complaints during 2000-2001.

Customer Service

The Ministry is committed to ensuring that language, 
gender, location and ability do not pose a barrier 
to accessing available services. All staff are 
encouraged to use plain English and to provide 
essential information in alternative formats on 
request. Information on translating and interpreting 
services is available for staff within the Law 
Chambers building.

Disability Services

The Ministry is committed to ensuring people with 
disabilities, their families and their carers are able to 
access the range of services provided. The Disability 
Services Planning Committee meets every quarter 
and works to improve and implement the Ministry’s 
Disability Services Plan.

Further information about achievements in the area 
of disability access is documented in the report of the 
Planning, Policy & Marketing Division.

Government Two Year Plan for Women 
1999-2001

The Ministry participated in a cross government 
approach to develop a strategic plan to advance 
the status of women. All of the agencies within the 
Ministry have identied areas of work which will be 
reported on in their separate annual reports.

The Ministry will continue to be sensitive to customer 
needs in terms of language used in promotional 
material, documents and publications. The Ministry 
will continue to monitor gender representation on 
Boards and Committees and will continue to review 
its processes to better reect women’s needs.

ACTION – A State Government Plan 
for Young People 2000-2003

The Ministry was closely involved in the development 
of the State Government Plan for Young People 
2000-2003. The Plan was launched in December 
2000 and represents a whole of Government 
approach to youth affairs in Western Australia. All 
of the agencies of the Ministry identied specic 
commitments in this area which will be reported on in 
their separate annual reports.

The Ministry will continue to work towards improving 
access for young people to participate in arts and 
culture. This will include ensuring equity of access to 
existing arts and cultural services and facilities, and 
ensuring that opportunities exist to support new and 
developing arts and cultural activities in which young 
people have demonstrated their interest.
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Waste Paper Recycling

The Ministry continues to recycle waste paper used 
in its activities. All staff are encouraged to recycle 
paper.

Expenditure related to Advertising and 
Market Research Organisations

Treasurer’s Instruction 903

Expenditure related to Advertising and Market 
Research Organisations

In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral 
Act 1907 expenditure by the Ministry for Culture & 
the Arts on advertising and related costs is listed 
below

a) Advertising Agencies Nil 

b) Market research organisations Nil 

c) Polling organisations Nil 

d) Direct mail organisations Nil 

e) Media advertising agencies

 Job vacancies

 $ 6,409.86 Marketforce Productions

 $ 3,150.00 Department of Premier and Cabinet
 $ 19,084.93  Public Sector Standards Commission
 $ 315.65  Telecom New Zealand

 Other

 $ 11,557.87 Marketforce Productions

 $ 274.00  Columbia Press

 $ 1,529.09  Mirror Australian Telegraph Publications

 $ 1,363.64 Indigenous Times

 $ 912.00 Craftwest Centre for Contemporary Art

 $ 32,112.68 City of Perth

 $ 400.00 Community Arts Network

 Total Media Advertising
 $ 70,699.86

Interests of Senior Officers

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 903 on 
the disclosure of interests of senior ofcers, senior 
ofcers have conrmed that they have no interest in 
any contracts made or proposed with the Ministry for 
Culture & the Arts.

Compliance with Public Sector 
Standards

In the administration of the Ministry for Culture & the 
Arts (incorporating ArtsWA and Business Support 
Units), I have complied with Public Sector Standards 
in human resource management, the Public Sector 
Code of Ethics and our Code of Conduct. 

The Ministry’s Human Resource policies and 
procedures have adequate checks in place to ensure 
compliance requirements are met, including adopting 
best practice guidelines in adherence with the Public 
Sector Standards.

No applications for breach of the Standards were 
received during the reporting year.

Other agencies of the Ministry – the 
Art Gallery of Western Australia, The 
Library Board of Western Australia, Perth 
Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western 
Australian Museum – have reported their 
level of compliance in their 2000-2001 
annual reports, in accordance with the 
Public Sector Management Act and their 
existing legislation or instruments. 

ALASTAIR BRYANT

DIRECTOR GENERAL
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PUBLICATIONS BY THE 
MINISTRY FOR CULTURE 
& THE ARTS (INCLUDING 
ARTSWA), AVAILABLE TO THE 
PUBLIC

2000-2001
Arts Investment Handbook 2000-2001 ArtsWA 

Artsline ArtsWA’s quarterly magazine

Independent review of the Operations of ScreenWest 
prepared for the Western Australian Ministry for 
Culture & the Arts by Malcolm Long Associates 
Pty Ltd, June 2001
www.screenwest.com.au/pdf/sw_review.pdf

Building community through the arts: an eight-year 
strategy 2001-2008 Western Australian Ministry for 
Culture & the Arts, Nov 2000
www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au/ministry/pdfs/community.pdf

Vital Statistics: Western Australian Cultural Statistics 
–June 2001 A report produced by the Australian 
Bureau of Statistics (ABS) for the Western Australian 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts, June 2001
www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au/ministry/pdfs/vitals2001.pdf

Annual Report 1999-2000 Ministry for Culture & the 
Arts

Website – www.cultureandarts.wa.gov.au

Viewpoint Quarterly newsletter published on behalf of 
the Minister for the Arts

Vital Statistics: Western Australian Cultural Statistics 
1999 No. 2 Australian Bureau of Statistics for the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts, August 1999

Arts Investment Handbook 1999-2000 ArtsWA

1999
Artsline ArtsWA’s quarterly magazine

Pulse Monthly newsletter for employees of the Ministry 
for Culture & the Arts

Expanding Horizons ArtsWA’s National & International 
Arts Development Policy 1999-2001, ArtsWA, June 
1999

Seniors and the Arts in Western Australia Michelle 
Scott for ArtsWA, June 1999

Theatres for Perth: An Opportunity for the Arts Graham 
Walne for the Ministry for Culture & the Arts, September 
1988

The Western Australian State Living Treasures Awards 
(Brochure) presented by Minister for the Arts

The above publications and brochures can also be 
obtained by contacting the Ministry’s librarian by 
telephone 08 9224 7300, facsimile 08 9224 7301 or 
at email kathb@artswa.mca.wa.gov.au

Publications are available in alternative formats upon 
request. 



Agencies Of The Ministry For 
Culture & The Arts
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ART GALLERY OF WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA

Mission

To develop and present the best public 
art collection in the State and the pre-
eminent collection of Western Australian 
art, and to increase the knowledge and 
appreciation of the art of the world for 
the enjoyment and cultural enrichment of 
the people of Western Australia.

The term ‘art’ means the full spectrum of visual art 
and craft.

Strategic Objectives

Gallery Development 

• Develop and maintain the best public art 
collection in the State

• Build a strong and committed audience for 
Gallery programs

• Diversify and enhance services to create a better 
understanding and appreciation of art

• Grow our professional reputation

Business Performance 

• Maximise the effective use of our resources

• Raise revenue to support delivery of programs

• Improve management of our risks

• Develop and improve our customer/client 
relationships

Our people

• Have a motivated, exible and competent 
workforce

• Maintain and where appropriate improve the 
safety and well-being of our people

• Reect community diversity in our paid and 
volunteer workforce

Cultural advocacy through art

• Lead and inuence cultural policy and community 
opinion

• Provide a forum for dialogue and debate

• Foster the importance of visual arts as a 
key component of trade, tourism, diplomacy, 
entertainment and events
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Achievements and highlights

Audience Development

Family Fun Days launch the Gallery as a destination 
for families. The combination of hands on activities, 
trails and give-aways proved very popular with 
younger visitors. With total attendances for the three 
fun days reaching 9,000 this year, the format has 
been rmly established on the Gallery’s calendar of 
events. 

@rtX, an initiative to promote the Gallery to 16-20 
year olds, was launched at the Year 12 Perspectives 
exhibition in March 2001. A $300,000 three-year 
sponsorship from the Ian Potter Foundation is being 
used to assist the Gallery to develop community 
partnerships which encourage young people into the 
Gallery. Pilot programs, with the Town of Vincent 
and the City of Swan, were established this year 
with plans to develop collection displays specically 
for young people in the following years of the 
sponsorship. 

Exhibitions

All exhibition spaces at the Gallery were transformed 
by the feature exhibition Side by Side, which 
presented highlights from the State Art Collection 
together with outstanding works on loan from private 
and corporate collections in Western Australia. The 
State Art Collection was enriched with generous 
loans from the Wesfarmers, Kerry Stokes, Holmes à 
Court, and Cruthers Collections.

The Art Gallery of Western Australia presented 
the rst comprehensive survey of the work of one 
of Australia’s most signicant contemporary artists, 
Robert MacPherson. This exhibition was a highlight 
of the 2001 Perth International Arts Festival and was 
accompanied by the rst signicant monographic 
publication on the artist.

Utopia: Ancient Cultures/New Forms, an exciting 
partnership between the Art Gallery of Western 
Australia and The Holmes à Court Collection, toured 
nationally.

The Gallery also presented Tête à Tête, an 
outstanding exhibition of world-renowned 
photographer, Henri Cartier-Bresson, and toured this 
work throughout Australia.

Strategic Partnerships

Strategic partnerships between the business 
community, individuals and the Art Gallery of 
Western Australia provide opportunities to achieve 
multiple marketing and hospitality objectives while 
building the pre-eminent collection of art in the State 
for all to enjoy.

Annual partners Channel 7, Marketforce and The 
West Australian made signicant contributions to the 
Gallery’s success this year and continue to commit to 
the growth and development of our State resource.

Year 12 Perspectives continues to expand with 
the International Foundation for Arts and Culture 
extending their sponsorship to include a reciprocal 
exchange of Australian and Japanese students’ work 
displayed in both countries. Woodside Energy also 
increased their level of support for this exhibition 
funding regional development days for staff and 
students in and around Karratha.

A partnering with the West Australian Symphony 
produced two special evenings at the Gallery and the 
Perth Concert Hall, with Gallery Director Alan Dodge 
and acclaimed international conductor Christopher 
Hogwood exchanging their usual “homes” to bring an 
added dimension to both the concerts and the Gallery.

The rst phase of the Sculpture Garden was initiated, 
with landscaping of part of the proposed garden area 
and the installation of Robert Juniper’s four-metre 
sculpture Iron Thicket.

The Perth International Arts Festival and Gallery 
partnership continues to generate critical excitement 
within the Perth Cultural Centre during the Festival.
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The Indigenous Trainee Assistant Curator program, 
now entering its second year, has been made 
possible due to the ongoing partnership with Rio 
Tinto, the Department of Aboriginal Affairs and the 
Australia Council.

Acquisitions

In recognition of the Art Gallery’s commitment to 
his work over many years, Howard Taylor made 
a gift of 218 maquettes for public commissions, 
sculptures and shaped paintings produced from 
c. 1950 to the present. This gift presents a 
unique group of objects which allow new insights 
into Taylor’s working methods and suggest the 
startlingly inventive development of his iconographic 
and material concerns over a 50-year period. 

Sailing Craft on the Swan, one of only two known 
oil paintings by Western Australian artist A.B. Webb 
(1887-1944), was purchased for the collection during 
the year. This work has been a target for the 
collection since Curator of Historical Art, Janda 
Gooding rst viewed the work in 1984. 

Corporate Performance and Program 
Support

The Gallery successfully completed the rst year of 
its Business Plan 2000-2004 well within projections. 
The Business Plan is supported by a comprehensive 
suite of team plans and management reports 
developed during the year to ensure that the Gallery 
remains on track to achieving targets set.

Self-managed staff teams have been realigned to 
focus more effectively on achieving outcomes that 
support the Gallery’s Business Plan. The teams now 
reect the ve key Gallery programs: Content and 
Display, Visitor Services, Art Services, Development, 
and Business Services.

Major capital works completed included the 
refurbishment of the Administration Building and also 
refurbishment of over 1000 square metres of ooring 
in the Main Gallery Building.

Board members:

Mr Mick Bolto, Chair

Mr Dario Amara

Mrs Eleanor Bendat

Ms Brigitte Braun

Ms Ricky Burges

Professor Ian Constable AO

Ms Donna White

Mr Alastair Bryant (ex ofcio)

Volunteers at the Art Gallery of 
Western Australia

Approximately 150-200 people volunteer as Gallery 
guides, visitor service, information and research 
ofcers, and interns and work experience students 
support a wide variety of customer focussed 
services each year. As well as providing hands on 
support, they are wonderful ambassadors within the 
community at large. 

Volunteer contributions are estimated as 13,500 
hours of regular service commitment each year. 
Interestingly, we have seen an increase in young 
people participating as volunteers, with the particular 
intention of expanding their professional experience. 
For example, interns from Curtin and Edith Cowan 
Universities have assisted this year with preparations 
for the Year 12 Perspectives and MacPherson 
exhibitions.

Improvements in both recruitment and training 
policies for Voluntary Gallery Guides and Information 
Ofcers have enabled us to capitalise on a wider 
demographic than the traditional senior volunteer. 
Throughout 2000-2001 the section has targeted 
Indigenous, Asian and French communities and 
youth groups to assist in presenting NAIDOC, Year 
12 Perspectives and Monet in Japan programs. Youth 
Guides, recruited from students exhibiting in Year 12 
Perspectives, also presented tours of the exhibition 
this year. In its wider role as State provider, the 
Gallery, where possible, also shares its experience 
in volunteer recruitment and management by sharing 
training resources with regional and local galleries.
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THE LIBRARY AND 
INFORMATION SERVICE OF 
WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Mission

To provide and promote equitable access 
to information resources and services 
which support the intellectual, economic, 
cultural, social and recreational needs of 
the people of Western Australia.

Objectives

• To meet the information needs of the people 
of Western Australia through the public library 
service by providing local government and 
associated bodies with leadership, resources, 
information and support services.

• To maintain, preserve and make available the 
documentary heritage of, and information about, 
Western Australia to meet the needs of current 
and future customers.

• To ensure public records of continuing value 
are available for use by government agencies 
and the public, and to provide records and 
archival management services to State and Local 
Government agencies so as to improve the 
quality of current records management systems.

• To meet the information needs of the people 
of Western Australia through the provision of 
reference and information services to individuals 
and organisations.

Achievements and highlights

Framework Agreement

Negotiations for a Framework Agreement to establish 
new and more up-to-date principles for the delivery 
of public library services in Western Australia have 
commenced. The Library Board of Western Australia 
and the Western Australian Municipal Association 

established a Negotiating Committee, and a series 
of position papers were discussed during the course 
of the year. It is expected that the Framework 
Agreement will be signed at the end of 2001.

State Records Act

The State Records Act 2000 and the State Records 
(Consequential Provisions) Act 2000 were passed, 
and it is expected that proclamation will occur during 
the second half of 2001. This Act will establish 
an independent authority called the State Records 
Commission, with standards setting, auditing and 
reporting responsibilities, and will be accountable 
directly to the Parliament. 

Digitisation

Over 6,000 images from the Battye Library’s Pictorial 
Collection have been digitised and can be seen 
via thumbnail and screen-size images on the 
online catalogue. In addition, information about 
5,497 pictorial collections (representing over 420,000 
images) from this immense and valuable source of 
the State’s visual history have been added to the 
database to improve access to these collections for 
remote users.

Western Australia and Federation 

With the assistance of a National Council for 
the Centenary of Federation grant, staff produced 
Western Australia and Federation, a CD-ROM and 
website covering Federation, the 1930s Secession 
Movement and present-day Commonwealth/State 
relations. It is aimed at upper secondary and 
tertiary students and features digitised materials 
from the collections, as well as interviews with 
key Western Australians. Another Centenary of 
Federation project was the creation of the website 
Western Perspectives on a Nation which showcases 
historic images from the collections grouped around 
the themes of land, the sea, architecture, transport, 
clothing, mining, and settlement. 
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Father’s Reading Program

A Fathers’ Reading Program was developed and 
implemented at Wooroloo Prison. During the six 
week program, weekly story sessions were held, with 
prisoners and their families attending to encourage 
fathers to read to their children as part of a family 
visit to the prison. 

State Library Shop

The State Library Shop was opened on the ground 
oor of the Alexander Library Building. It supports the 
Western Australian publishing industry by providing a 
specialist retail outlet for published works on Western 
Australia or works written or published by Western 
Australians.

Records Management Training for 
Ministerial staff

Training provided to staff of Ministers’ ofces 
created a greater awareness of the proper capture, 
management and disposal of Ministers’ records, 
resulting in a large volume of archival records being 
transferred to the State Records Ofce prior to and 
following the change of government in February 
2001. 

Exhibitions

A number of major exhibitions were held in the 
Centre for the Book: Quokkas to Quasars – a 
science story; Lasting Impressions – migrant stories, 
and 22 Days Late – an ode to Federation telling the 
story of how Western Australia became a member of 
the federated states of Australia. 

Reorganisation of State Reference 
Library Services

Client services in the State Reference Library were 
reorganised to coincide with the replacement of the 
oor-coverings in all public areas. These changes 
provide clients with more open oor plans providing 
better access to library materials and electronic 
services.

Network Upgrade

The LISWA computer network was upgraded to 
improve the delivery of electronic resources to clients 
via the Internet. 

Board Members:

Mr Graham McEachran, Chair (from January-
June 2001)

Mrs Joan Cameron, Vice Chair

Mrs Kay Poustie (Chair, July-December 2000)

Clr Nola Waters

Ms Kathleen Melsom

Mr Bryn Jones

Clr John Walker

Dr Lenore Layman

Mr Michael Sonter

Mr Glyn Parry

Dr Ray Steedman

Clr Janet Davidson

Mr Alastair Bryant (ex ofcio)

Clr Judith McEvoy (to December 2000)

Mr David Wood (to December 2000)

Professor Robert White (to September 2000)

Volunteers at the Library & 
Information Service of Western 
Australia

Volunteers at LISWA give their time willingly, 
assisting staff in the provision of information services 
for the benet of all Western Australians. People 
donate their time and expertise in a wide range of 
areas within the Alexander Library Building, including 
the State Reference Library, the J.S. Battye Library 
of West Australian History, Preservation Services, 
and in the State Records Ofce. 
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In the State Reference Library, a dedicated group of 
volunteers from the Western Australian Genealogical 
Society Inc. (WAGS) have given their time and 
expertise for over fteen years, helping Western 
Australians conduct genealogical research.

The volunteers provide valuable assistance to 
genealogy researchers, by suggesting resources 
to use within the Genealogy Centre, and 
recommending other places of research when 
appropriate. The volunteers provide extra assistance 
to genealogists who are just beginning to trace 
family histories, and also recommend new avenues 
of investigation for experienced researchers. The 
friendly service provided by WAGS volunteers, 
together with their professional knowledge is greatly 
appreciated by both researchers and library staff.

The J.S. Battye Library of West Australian History 
has a volunteer program, which runs under the 
auspices of the Friends of Battye Library Inc. 

Volunteers work on a wide range of projects, 
including the compilation of indexes or synopses to 
transcripts held in the Oral History Unit; sorting and 
listing papers and photographs for further processing 
in Private Archives and the Pictorial Collection; 
scanning newspapers or magazine issues to nd 
articles suited for indexing onto the library’s computer 
catalogue; and sorting and listing pamphlets and 
other material held in the Ephemera Collection. 

This year, 49 volunteers gave their time to the Battye 
Library, State Reference Library Genealogy Centre, 
State Records Ofce and Preservation Services. 
This translated to a total of approximately 350 hours 
per month or around 4200 hours per year. The 
team of volunteers who work behind the scenes 
provide invaluable assistance to library staff, allowing 
us to provide a wealth of information, which would 
otherwise remain within the connes of the library. 

A Christmas lunch was hosted in December 2000 for 
LISWA’s volunteers. This year we also celebrated the 
International Year of Volunteers by inviting all LISWA 
volunteers, together with library staff responsible for 
supervision of their work, for a special morning 

tea. This event, held on Wednesday 16 May 2001, 
coincided with National Volunteer Week. Both these 
functions provided a great opportunity to thank 
all volunteers for their valuable contribution, and 
to acknowledge the importance of their work in 
helping to make the library’s collections and services 
available to the Western Australian community. 
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PERTH THEATRE TRUST

Mission 

To maximise the effectiveness of the 
performing arts resources under its 
control to enhance the cultural and 
economic life of Western Australia.

Objectives

The objectives of the Perth Theatre Trust are:

• To provide high quality venues and services to 
maximise the cultural and public use of the 
venues managed by the Trust.

• To provide an efcient ticketing and information 
service to facilitate access to the Trust’s 
performing arts venues and targeted marketing 
information to performing arts companies.

• To ensure efciency and effectiveness of its 
management practices.

Achievements and highlights 

• Lighting system upgrades at His Majesty’s 
Theatre, Perth Concert Hall, Playhouse Theatre 
and Subiaco Theatre Centre completed.

• The basement at His Majesty’s Theatre was 
reopened as Down Stairs at the Maj as a cabaret 
venue and two 12 week seasons completed.

• Museum of Performing Arts relocated to 
downstairs at His Majesty’s Theatre with 
improved displays, interpretation and public 
access.

• BOCS Ticketing and Marketing Services 
achieved a high level of business activity, 
including group bookings and marketing activities. 

• MajKidz program launched providing theatre 
experience and training for up to 100 students 
monthly for a year.

• Website for the Trust venues was upgraded to 

include Ipix tours, which provides a virtual tour 
with 360° views of the venues. 

• Perth Concert Hall lift extended to basement car 
park enabling improved disabled access.

• Food and beverage operations reassigned to 
in-house management.

• Airconditioning renewal completed at His 
Majesty’s Theatre and Playhouse Theatre, 
enabling enhanced airow to individual parts of 
the building. 

• Airconditioning installed at the Studio at Subiaco 
Theatre Centre.

• Meeting room and ofce space constructed in the 
undercroft at Subiaco Theatre Centre.

• Interim administration of the Swan Bells was 
under the Trust, with Ogden IFC (Perth) 
providing day-to-day operational management. 
Over 277,000 persons attended between 11 
December 2000 and 30 June 2001.

• Rechabites Hall continued to be actively utilised 
as a performance and rehearsal venue for 
emerging and alternative art forms for the 
majority of the year.

Major Events 
Merry Widow - Australian Ballet

Jive Junkies

Hi5 

Slim Dusty

The Pearl Fishers - West Australian Opera

Romeo and Juliet - West Australian Ballet 

Rambert Dance Company 

The Servant To Two Masters - Royal Shakespeare 
Company and Old Vic

Takacs Quartet 

Face-To-Face - Perth Theatre Company

Girl Talk with Jacqui Weaver

Alice - Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre

A Cheezy Little Musical - Barking Gecko
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Board Members

Mr Harry Morgan AM, Chair

Dr Toby Manford

Ms Maureen McDaniell

Cr Tess Stroud

Cr Judy McEvoy

Cr Laurence Goodman (to 5 May 2001)

Mr Henry Boston (from August 2000)

Mr Alastair Bryant (ex ofcio)
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SCREENWEST

Vision

To lead the screen industry to a level of 
creative and commercial success which 
is a source of pride and opportunity for 
all Western Australians.

Core purpose

To provide strategic support, funding and services 
which expand the screen industry in Western 
Australia.

Achievements and highlights

Western Australia increased its level of production 
output from 1999-2000, particularly in drama 
production. ScreenWest attracted two major drama 
projects (a feature lm Let’s Get Skase and an 
animation series When Quads Won’t Leave with 
combined budgets of approximately $9 million) from 
a signicant national production company, which 
has not previously created production in Western 
Australia. Western Australian actors were cast in 40 
of the 50 speaking roles in Let’s Get Skase. This 
large-scale lm production was a great opportunity 
to employ local talent with up to 75% of the crew 
coming from Perth. The Mary G Show is another 
notable success. The project was written and 
produced by the indigenous organisation Goolarri 
Media, and hosted by the popular Mark Bin Bakar 
alias Mary Geddardyu. A second series is likely to 
be commissioned. 

Documentary production continued to expand in 
Western Australia. A selection includes:

• Playing the Game, a three-part documentary 
history series which takes a fresh look at some 
of the key developments in American foreign 
policy from the 1930s to the 1980s. The $1.5 
million production was lmed in 10 countries on 
5 continents. International award-winning Perth 
documentary companies, Electric Pictures and 
Wildlm Australia, jointly produced the series.

• Prospero Productions commenced production on 
two major series: Selling Australia and Shipwreck 
Detectives. 

• Storyteller Productions completed a 13-part 
series Animal X, Series 2 and commenced 
another 13-part series Animal Allies. This brings 
their total production slate with the Discovery 
Channel in the nancial year to $3.3 million.

Western Australia was selected as host of the 
prestigious Australian International Documentary 
Conference (AIDC). Programmed under the banner 
Edge of Reality the opportunity to host this world 
class event was a major coup for Western Australia, 
which is already recognised as one of Australia’s 
leading producers of documentary product. The 
Conference attracted over 520 delegates, making 
it the biggest AIDC conference to date. Delegates 
were attracted from around Australia and the world 
including internationally acclaimed documentary 
makers, distributors and broadcasters. 

The ‘Pitch and Punt’ event had 68 entries submitted 
from documentary projects around the world vying 
for $10,000 in development money from the ABC and 
BBC. Three projects were shortlisted, two of which 
were from West Australian documentary makers 
Melanie Byres and Alan Carter. 

For the rst time, two West Australian short lms 
were selected to screen at the Somerville Auditorium 
alongside major international lms in the 2001 Perth 
International Arts Festival. Parlami D’Amore (Speak 
to Me of Love), directed by Glen Eaves and written 
and produced by Elena Pasquini, was assisted 
through ScreenWest’s Filmex Post scheme. 

In a Flash, written and directed by Justin Cheek and 
produced by Melanie Rodriga and Mala Sujan, was 
funded through Filmex. Four other Filmex funded 
short lms were produced in Western Australia 
during 2000-01, ranging from the surreal and the 
comic to highly charged human drama. Wait ‘till 
Your Father Gets Home has been accepted into a 
number of International Film Festivals including the 
Melbourne International Film Festival and the Boston 
Film Festival. 
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ScreenWest identied a number of potential key 
tenants for the Screen Industry Precinct, one of the 
key recommendations of the WA Screen Industry 
Taskforce Report. Discovery Asia were issued an 
invitation to respond to a Request for Quotation for 
the potential relocation of Discovery Asia to Western 
Australia.

The joint venture between Granada Media UK and 
ScreenWest continues to gain momentum, with the 
venture committing to invest development funds in 
its rst two drama projects, Barefoot Kids and 
The Shark Net. Granada also provided distribution 
commitments to a number of Western Australian 
documentaries and developed with ScreenWest, 
a business concept designed to increase factual 
programming output from Western Australia. 

ScreenWest’s relationship with SBS Independent 
continues to grow. Teesh and Trude, the successful 
recipient of the SBS Independent and ScreenWest 
low budget feature initiative “Off the Edge”, will 
commence production early in the new nancial year. 
Plans for future joint initiatives are progressing well.

ScreenWest introduced a monthly e-mail newsletter 
that goes to a growing database of over 3500 
e-mail addresses across Australia and overseas. 
The newsletter has proved to be an extremely 
successful tool in highlighting Western Australia’s 
production potential to national and international 
audiences. Importantly, it has also achieved its 
objective of facilitating communication within both 
the emerging and professional sectors of the local 
industry.

Productions assisted by ScreenWest continue to 
obtain international and national recognition, with a 
number winning major television awards.

Sarah Rossetti won her fourth consecutive AWGIE 
award for writing the documentary Lobster Tales, 
which she followed up with the What If Award for 
Best Emerging Film Maker in 2000 for a body of work 
including her feature script concept Nullarbor Pearl. 

Lobster Tales, which was produced by Artemis 
International, also won a range of other awards. 
Leighton De Barros won the Australian 
Cinematographers Society Award for 
cinematography in November 2000.

The 2000 AFI Awards also saw notable wins 
for ScreenWest funded projects. Tom Zubrycki 
won the best Documentary AFI Award for Stolen 
Generations (Western Australian Ian Pugsley was 
the Cinematographer on this moving documentary). 
Confessions of a Headhunter, which was directed by 
Sally Riley, produced by Kath Shelper and co-written 
by Sally Riley and Archie Weller, won the Best Short 
Fiction Film Award.

Other notable successes included a Dendy Award 
for the best short lm for the ScreenWest funded 
Perfect Pale Blue, written and directed by Alicia 
Walsh and produced by Karen Williams. Storyteller 
Productions also won a bevy of awards this nancial 
year, including the Rolex Grand Prix at the French 
International Maritime and Exploration Film Festival. 
This award was for Before It’s Too Late - Whale 
Shark Gypsy of the Deep. This lm was written and 
directed by Mike Searle, produced by Linda Searle, 
Mike Searle and Richard Todd, with cinematography 
by Richard Todd. Storyteller is the only production 
company in the world to have won this prize on two 
occasions. The same episode also won the Gold 
Jury Prize at the Houston International Film Festival 
in the USA.

Alley Kat/Electric Pictures was nominated for a 
prestigious “Rockie” at BANFF TV, 2000 for 
Best Info Program and Electric Pictures. Robin 
Eastwood Productions was nominated for the Best 
Documentary award for Painting Country at the 
International Electronic Cinema Festival Chiba 2001 
held in Japan in April 2001. Prospero Productions 
has also had a highly successful year, winning a 
Certicate of Merit for Television, Society and Culture 
award at the 2001 San Francisco International Film 
Festival for Diving School, which also picked up 
an honorary mention at the Toulon International 
Maritime and Exploration Film Festival. Hutan: 
Wildlife of the Malaysian Rainforest also picked up 
an Honorary Mention at the same Festival.
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Parlami D’Amore (Speak to Me of Love), directed 
by Glen Eaves and written and produced by Elena 
Pasquini, won a National ATOM Award for best short 
drama - tertiary section. CVA Film and Television 
won the prestigious WA Arts & Entertainment Export 
Award in October 2000. Colleen Cruise’s short 
animated lm entitled 3DME received an Honourable 
Mention in the Experimental/ Animation category 
at The Chicago Lesbian & Gay International Film 
Festival in 2000. Sissy, directed by Debbie Gittens 
and produced by Brian Beaton, won the Best Short 
Film award for the Out of the Way – “I’ll say wot I like” 
festival in Perth in October 2000. 

Board members:

Kevin Campbell, Chair

John Fiocco, Deputy Chair 

John Rapsey

Ed Punchard 

Valerie Davies

Sue Milliken 

Bill Gillespie 

Adrian Fini 

Melanie Rodriga 

Alastair Bryant (ex ofcio) 
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WESTERN AUSTRALIAN 
MUSEUM

Mission

Through the programs of the Western 
Australian Museum, the people of 
Western Australia will be better 
equipped to understand themselves, their 
environments, and their place in the 
world.

Objectives

With the support of the Western Australian 
community, continue to develop an informative, 
interesting and vital Museum, to improve the 
generation and communication of our knowledge 
and assist in building a sustainable awareness and 
appreciation of our natural environment and cultural 
heritage.

Achievements and highlights
• A new conceptual framework titled 

BiosphereWest was developed which will provide 
strategic guidance for future initiatives for the 
Museum. Key elements include partnerships with 
the community, being a public forum, proling 
major social and scientic developments as they 
happen, and enhancing the Museum’s focus on 
the place of Western Australia in the Indian 
Ocean region.

• A new Corporate Strategic Plan for 2001-2005 
was developed involving staff and stakeholders 
and incorporating the BiosphereWest concept.

• Construction of the new Western Australian 
Museum, Geraldton, was completed and the 
Batavia portico installed in the Shipwreck Gallery 
in May 2001.

• Work on the new Maritime Museum at Fremantle 
continues with the estimated date for completion 
of construction being February 2002. 

• A major multi-disciplinary exhibition, Western 
Australia: Land and People, was opened in the 
refurbished Hackett Hall building.

• The master plan for the redevelopment of the 
Perth site of the Western Australian Museum 
was reviewed. Planning continues to stage the 
redevelopment in light of asbestos in the Francis 
Street Building.

• Work on the master plan for the Western 
Australian Museum, Kalgoorlie-Boulder has 
commenced.

• The Western Australian Museum’s website has 
been extended and a consultancy engaged to 
review the site to ensure it reached national 
standards.

• The Museum’s intranet site has been established 
and staff are being trained in maintaining and 
updating the site.

• Over 145 articles were published by Museum 
staff including a major national work Broken 
Circles: Fragmenting Aboriginal Families 
1800-1900.

• As part of the Woodside-Museum partnership, 
an international marine biological eld workshop 
was successfully run in the Dampier Archipelago 
(based in Karratha) from 25 July to 11 August 
2000. Forty researchers (international, Australian 
and local WA scientists) participated.

• The sh collection was successfully moved 
from the heritage Jubilee Building basement 
to a customised ammable liquid store, thus 
alleviating potential occupational health and 
safety risk on the Perth Museum site.

• Most of the bulk alcohol-stored natural science 
specimens were moved offsite to commercial 
storage to ameliorate worsening storage 
problems at the Perth site.

• The Museum’s community-based program, Alcoa 
FrogWAtch reached a membership of 5,400 
people. During the year, a FrogWAtch website 
was launched; a Frog Friendly Day was held; an 
educational kit was launched and a book on ‘frog 
friendly’ gardens was published.

• Under a new maintenance and conservation 
program, Museum staff and a team of volunteer 
marine engineers completed work on the 
Museum’s Rolls Royce, Packard and Austin 7. 
These vehicles are now operational allowing them 
to be used for ceremonial or other promotional 
activities for the Museum.
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• A special centenary program of activities 
was mounted for ANZAC Day 2001 including 
exhibitions Gallipoli Images, The Light Horse 
Memorial Troop and Albany & Federation at the 
Western Australian Museum, Albany.

• A Disaster Prevention Planning Workshop was 
completed for regional and remote communities.

• The Museum launched a colourful new family 
of logos for its various branches that not only 
reinforces the corporate identity of the Museum, 
but also the unique aspects of each site.

Board members:
Dr Ken Michael AM, Chair
Mrs Sally Anne Hasluck (until 17 April 2001)
Mr Peter Hickson (until 17 April 2001)
Mrs Bridget Faye AM 
Dr Charlie Fox
Professor Lyn Beazley
Mrs Ainslie Evans
Mr Alastair Bryant (ex ofcio)
Ms Irene Stainton (observer)

Volunteers at the Western Australian 
Museum
The date of 18 December 2001 has been set aside 
for a special function to ofcially thank the Western 
Australian Museum volunteers.

Perth site
Molluscs Section (Aquatic Zoology)
5 volunteers working approx 1 day each per week in 
curatorial, laboratory and ofce work

Fish Department (Aquatic Zoology)
5 volunteers working approx 1 to 1.5 days per week 
in curatorial, laboratory and ofce work

Ornithology
5 volunteers working approximately 1.5 days per 
week each undertaking curatorial work and working 
in the eld.

Library
The Library currently has a team of 9 volunteers. 
Three permanent volunteers have been coming for 

one or two days each week for periods of from 
ve to nine years. Three of the volunteers are 
library students seeking to gain practical experience. 
The volunteers provide assistance with thousands of 
journal articles and reprints for indexation, sorting, 
boxing and labeling etc.

Maritime
WA Maritime Museum has 127 volunteers. 58 
volunteers provide assistance in Education for 
2-5 hours per day. Maritime Archaeology has 
9 volunteers. Three are currently working 
approximately 1 day per week. Maritime History and 
Australia II have 9 and 7 volunteers respectively 
working when required. The Submarine Ovens has 
44 volunteers who act as guides from Friday to 
Sunday and public and school holidays.

The WA Maritime Museum Submarine Volunteer 
Guides were awarded the Fremantle Heritage Award 
2001 for Signicant Contribution To Fremantle Social, 
Cultural, Built or Natural Heritage. 

Albany
Volunteers at the WA Museum Albany assist in many 
ways mostly in the operations and research aspects 
of the Museum for approximately about 10 hours per 
week.

Geraldton
The WA Museum, Geraldton has a group of 
enthusiastic volunteers who assist with the School 
Holiday Programs. It hosts two programs each 
weekday for a two-week period during the school 
terms. Each program runs for 1.5 hours and has 
either one, two or three volunteers depending on the 
class size and program. 

Kalgoorlie-Boulder
Friends of the WA Museum Kagoorlie-Boulder offer 
their time on weekends and give short talks. A few 
people engage in research activities for the Museum, 
another volunteer researcher assists enquiries about 
local family history. Volunteers occasionally assist in 
the school holiday programs through the Friends of 
the Museum.
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ARTSWA

ANNUAL REPORT 2000-2001

ARTSWA’S MISSION 

To facilitate, for the diverse Western 
Australian community, a vibrant and viable 
environment for the arts and cultural 
industries through advocacy, investment, 
industry development initiatives and policy 
development.

OBJECTIVE

In reporting against the performance measures for 
agreed outputs, ArtsWA has identied four key 
strategic areas in which it operates to achieve its 
mission. They are:

Increasing Participation

Participation in the arts and cultural activities by the 
people of Western Australia is a major element of 
ArtsWA strategies. The challenge is to make arts and 
culture accessible and relevant to everyone in the 
State.

Expanding Horizons

Interstate and international interaction in arts and 
culture is essential for developing new markets, 
benchmarking Western Australian arts practice, 
establishing a presence and dening our place in the 
world.

Forming Strategic Alliances

Greater independence for arts organisations from 
ArtsWA funds will be encouraged. Strategic alliances 
will be developed to increase available revenue from 
other sources including sponsorship.

Engaging in Best Practice

ArtsWA recognises that building better systems 
is fundamental to the longer-term growth, vitality 
and viability of the arts. Skills, information and 
organisational systems, as well as capital works, are 
needed to provide world-class services.

These strategies will ensure structures are in place to 
deliver effective and relevant services.
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THE DIRECTOR’S YEAR IN 
OVERVIEW

This year has been an opportunity for 
ArtsWA to assess, in acute detail, the 
means of facilitating arts development for 
the performing arts sector, in particular. 

The Major Performing Arts Inquiry outcomes 
implemented in Western Australia resulted in 
increased base funding to the West Australian Ballet, 
West Australian Opera, West Australian Symphony 
and Black Swan Theatre Company. Other initiatives 
will assist with the development of earned income, 
improved management and nancial stabilisation. 
The signing of new tripartite contracts, together with 
the increased support from the Australia Council, 
enables the four companies to plan with a secure 
base for the future.

By chairing and fullling the role of secretariat 
for the Cultural Ministers Council Working Party 
for the “Small to Medium Performing Arts Sector 
Report”, ArtsWA has been in a position to deepen its 
understanding of the sector’s structural issues and to 
envisage ways of developing effective support.

In the coming year, ArtsWA will build upon this 
vital work and widen its focus to other sectors. 
The Federal Government has recently announced a 
review into the contemporary visual arts and 
craft sector and ArtsWA has advocated that the 
States should play a major role in this review. 
Building upon the work done this year, ArtsWA will 
continue to review triennial funding structures and 
contracting arrangements between ArtsWA and arts 
organisations.

One of the signicant ways ArtsWA delivers 
outcomes for the arts is through strategic 
partnerships. Links with ArtsWA’s key partners - 
Lotteries Commission, Healthway, Ofce of Youth 
Affairs and the Department of Commerce and Trade 
- were signicantly furthered this year with new joint 

initiatives across youth arts projects, regional arts 
projects, Aboriginal arts and international arts activity. 
Details of these exciting initiatives are documented 
elsewhere in this report. At a national level, key 
relationships continue with the Australia Council 
and the Department of Communications, Information 
Technology and the Arts (DOCITA).

In addition to thanking all of our partners both in and 
out of government, I would like to thank all in the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts, ArtsWA’s peer panel 
members, arts organisations, artists and other arts 
professionals for assisting ArtsWA in implementing 
our strategic objectives over the past year. Finally, 
a special thank you to the talented staff at ArtsWA 
who, by working as a steadfast team, have made it 
possible to achieve so much in a year.

ALLANAH LUCAS
DIRECTOR, ARTSWA
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

ArtsWA operates as a team, with staff working jointly on and sharing responsibility for delivering the Agency’s 
services. Ofce bearers as at 30 June 2001 were;

ArtsWA would like to acknowledge the contribution made by the following staff members during 2000-2001;

• Travis Beasley, Young People and the Arts Ofcer

• Sam Cook, Special Projects Ofcer

• Cathy Driver, Young People and the Arts Ofcer

• Bev Greig, Project Ofcer, Operations

• Carol Innes, Aboriginal Arts Ofcer

3 Peer Assessment Panels
- Aboriginal Arts
- Arts Development
- Young People and the Arts

Grants
Administration

James Wells
Administrator

Sue
Cockburn-Campbell
Assistant
Administrator

Vacant
A/Administrative
Clerk

Senior
Project Officers

Carol
Whish-Wilson
Arts Business
Development

Nikki Miller
Industry
Development

Robin Ho
Public Affairs
and Marketing (p/t)

Vacant
Community
Development
and Participation

Project Officers

Jane Mitchell
Young People
and the Arts

Abbe Cook
Community
& Regional
Development

Keith Sinclair
Visual Arts,
Crafts & Literature

June Councillor
Aboriginal Arts

Steve Shaw
Performing Arts

Shane Colquhoun
Special Projects

General
Adminstration

Marion Gilbert
Administrative
Assistant

Rhodda Capewell
Secretarial
Assistant

Katherine
Browne-Cooper
Administrative
Assistant  (p/t)

Maria Rozich
Administrative
Assistant (p/t)

Allanah Lucas
Director



Ministry For Culture & The Arts: Annual Report 2000 – 2001 42 

ArtsWA - Events, Achievements, Highlights - Strategic Areas

OVERVIEW OF MAJOR 
EVENTS, ACHIEVEMENTS AND 
HIGHLIGHTS 

• Conduct of an extensive New Tax and the 
Arts education and information program across 
Western Australia.

• Agreement to the recommendations of the Major 
Performing Arts Inquiry and implementation 
of new funding agreements with the major 
companies.

• Completion of an Arts Management Training 
Needs Analysis.

• Evaluation of Arts Venture Capital.

• Appraisal of Artrage.

• Implementation of the Visiting Journalists for the 
Arts Initiative.

• Partnership with Department of Commerce and 
Trade for development of three Arts Edge 
positions in Kimberley, Pilbara and Gascoyne 
regions.

• Partnership with the Australia Council for 
the development of an Audience Development 
position in the Pilbara region.

• Establishment of Western Australian 
Contemporary Music Reference Group and 
development of a pilot all-ages music events 
funding program in partnership with Lotteries 
Commission, Healthway, Ofce of Youth Affairs 
and the Department of Commerce and Trade.

• Chairing and secretariat role for Cultural Ministers 
Council Working Party on “Small to Medium 
Performing Arts Sector Report”.

STRATEGIC AREAS

Young People and the Arts

• The Young People and the Arts Policy is entering 
its fth year of implementation. A strategy to 
implement the recommendations arising from an 
evaluation of the policy in 2000 will be developed 
in 2001. The policy aims to enrich young people’s 
appreciation of, and access to, the arts. It 
emphasises the need to ensure that there are 
arts products and experiences that are relevant 
to young people, produced with and by them, 
as well as for them. The objective of the policy 
is to ensure that all young people in Western 
Australia have access to the arts, regardless 
of their economic, social, cultural or geographic 
circumstances. Western Australia is recognised 
as a national leader in the young people 
and the arts area due to the articulation and 
implementation of this policy. 

• Support for Young People’s Arts Organisations - 
provided on a triennial basis to: Barking Gecko 
Theatre Company; Buzz Dance Theatre; Spare 
Parts Puppet Theatre; WA Youth Orchestra; 
STEPS Youth Dance Company; WA Youth Jazz 
Orchestra; Children’s Book Week; Fremantle 
Children’s Literature; Musica Viva in Schools; and 
the Albany based Southern Edge Arts.

• Funding for projects by, with and for persons 
less than 25 years of age was distributed 
through the Young People and the Arts Panel. 
Funding distributed through the panel totalled 
$172,760. Aaron Beach was awarded a $10,000 
Creative Development Fellowship to work with 
the Australian Theatre for Young People in 
Sydney to develop skills in artistic direction, 
company administration and management. 

• A 15 member Contemporary Music Reference 
Group, consisting of industry professionals and 
young musicians, was established to develop 
a strategy specic to the needs of Western 
Australia.

• Development of a pilot all-ages music events 
funding program. Partners are Healthway, 
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Lotteries Commission, Ofce of Youth Affairs 
and Department of Commerce and Trade. 
Implementation due for 2001-2002.

• Mentoring program developed in partnership with 
the Australia Council Music Fund ($15,000 each). 
Implementation will commence in 2001, with 
results anticipated for 2002.

• Review of “Artrage” Festival Fringe Society 
conducted by Lockie McDonald. 
Recommendations due August 2001.

• ArtsWA invests in AWESOME Arts Australia to 
provide international arts events for children aged 
6 to 14 through the Awesome Perth International 
Children’s Festival.

• ArtsWA’s Young People and the Arts Project 
Ofcer travelled to Sydney in October to attend 
the Pacic Circle Music Expo and to meet with 
the Australia Council. The Ofcer also travelled 
to Bunbury to present a lecture on funding to 
visual arts students at Edith Cowan University 
and meet with potential funding applicants, and 
Busselton for the Busselton Beach Festival to see 
a performance by Southern Edge Arts. 

Aboriginal Arts Development

• Work with Aboriginal communities and the arts 
and cultural sector continued to develop an 
Aboriginal Arts policy. ArtsWA expects to launch 
the policy in 2002.

• ArtsWA sponsored the 1999 Western Australian 
Indigenous Business Awards - Cultural Industry 
Award. By supporting this event ArtsWA was 
able to work in partnership with the Ofce of 
Aboriginal Economic Development to promote the 
link between arts development and economic 
development.

• Workshops relating to the New Tax System and 
Indigenous Artists were held by or with the 
support of ArtsWA in May and September 2000.

• ArtsWA contributed to the National Indigenous 
Intellectual Property Seminar conducted in Perth 
in November 2000.

• ArtsWA contributed to the Reconciliation and the 
Arts Workshop and conference held at Point 
Walter in June this year. ArtsWA is active in this 
group alongside AbMusic and Community Arts 
Network WA.

• Goolarri Media Enterprises were supported 
through a grant for the organising of the National 
Indigenous Arts Festival held annually in Broome.

• In partnership with the Ofce of Aboriginal 
Economic Development, ArtsWA facilitated the 
International Indigenous Arts workshop in 
Mandurah in March 2001 to assist the local 
Aboriginal arts sector to market their product 
internationally.

Regional & Community Arts 
Development

• Community Arts Network WA and Country 
ArtsWA continue to manage devolved funds 
for community and regional arts development 
on behalf of ArtsWA. This enables ArtsWA to 
focus on its development and monitoring role 
and coordinate strategic initiatives for regional 
Western Australia.

• Department of Commerce and Trade has 
contributed $210,000 funding towards three part-
time Arts Edge positions in each of the Kimberley, 
Gascoyne and Pilbara regions. The Kimberley 
Arts Edge position has been the rst to be 
established and developed for implementation in 
2001. The position will be located out of the 
Kimberley College of TAFE – Broome Campus. 

• The Australia Council for the Arts contributed 
$239,500 funding towards a two-year full-time 
position in the Pilbara Region in partnership with 
ArtsWA as the manager of this project. The 
position will be known as the Pilbara Audience 
Development Ofcer, servicing mainly the East 
Pilbara, with links into the West Pilbara region. 
This regional ArtsWA position will be based in 
Newman.
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• Agreements between ArtsWA, Department of 
Territories (Perth Ofce) and the Department 
of Premier and Cabinet have resulted in 
the assessment of Indian Ocean Territory 
applications through the ArtsWA Arts 
Development panel. This arrangement ensures 
that professional arts workers assess grant 
applications. 

• ArtsWA’s Community and Regional Arts Project 
Ofcer has travelled extensively throughout the 
State this year covering the West Kimberley 
from Fitzroy Crossing to Broome, the Pilbara 
region, Moora, Albany, Esperance, Mandurah 
and Bunbury. These trips were taken in 
association with Country Arts WA, Community 
Arts Network WA and the Western Australian 
Museum.

International

• Two new funding programs were implemented. 
Through the Global Residencies Program, 
$41,300 was distributed to ten of the State’s 
distinguished artists or arts companies to 
undertake artist-in-residence programs.

• The Art and Cultural Export Program was 
introduced to provide support for the exporting of 
Western Australian arts. $125,013 was distributed 
for 18 different projects. Assessment was through 
the Arts Development Panel. This program also 
involved a Quick Response Program, as well 
as advice to clients on best practice models for 
developing international arts activity.

• A cross-government committee was established 
to facilitate the exporting of art. The International 
Arts Development Coordinating Committee has 
now held three meetings with the result 
of increased communication and cooperation 
across the Ministry for Culture & the Arts, 
Department of Commerce and Trade, Western 
Australian Tourism Commission, Austrade and 
the Department of Foreign Affairs. The work of 
the Committee has also resulted in increased 
funding and general assistance to the arts across 
Government. 

• A Visiting Journalists Program was established in 
2000. To date two successful visits have been 
organised resulting in positive press coverage 
and on-going collaboration with Matthew Krouse, 
Arts Editor of the Mail and Guardian, South 
Africa and Ratnottama Sengupta, Arts Editor, The 
Times of India. In addition to media coverage, 
both are helping facilitate exchange programs 
with their respective countries and are providing 
invaluable advice to Western Australia’s touring 
arts organisations. A further three journalists are 
scheduled to visit in 2001. 

• Two databases have been established. One 
tracks Western Australia’s involvement in 
international arts activity and the second records 
useful contacts for international arts activity.

• The Artists Foundation of WA continues to 
manage an artists exchange program with Basle, 
Switzerland, on behalf of ArtsWA. Artist Simone 
Fuchs was the visiting artist from Basle and 
Western Australian artist Lorenna Grant visited 
Basle.

Arts Development

• The Café Culture Fund initiative aimed to 
increase and promote live music performed in 
cafes, restaurants and bars. Nine projects were 
funded through Local Government partnerships 
with businesses in the sector in metropolitan and 
regional areas. The Shires of Broome and Murray, 
and the Cities of Armadale, Stirling, Rockingham, 
Joondalup, Melville, Swan and Mandurah all 
received funding through this initiative.

• Major Performing Arts Inquiry outcomes 
implemented in WA resulted in increased base 
funding to the West Australian Ballet, West 
Australian Opera, West Australian Symphony and 
Black Swan Theatre Company. Other initiatives 
will assist with the development of earned income, 
improved management and nancial stabilisation. 
The signing of new tripartite contracts, together 
with the increased support from the Australia 
Council, enables the four companies to plan with 
a secure base for the future.
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• Tura Events Co. (for the Totally Huge New Music 
Festival) and Efe Crump Theatre were made 

“multi-year” clients with annual funding provided 
for a three-year period.

• ArtsWA undertook the role of chair and 
secretariat for Cultural Ministers Council Working 
Party on “Small to Medium Performing Arts 
Sector Report”. The report will be submitted to 
the Cultural Ministers Council in late 2001.

• Financial assistance was provided for selected 
Western Australian art galleries to participate in 
the Australian Contemporary Art Fair held in 
Melbourne, 2000 and for the staging of Art01 - 
the Western Australian Art Fair, 16 -18 February 
2001.

Improving Arts Agency Practices 
(Business Development)

• Implementation of ArtsWA’s The New Tax System 
and the Arts program: design and implementation 
of workshops across Western Australia including 
discussions and meetings with Indigenous artists 
in remote areas, primary authorship of the 
Australia Council’s GST and the Arts Handbook 
and national workshop program. 

• Cultural Pursuits Pty Ltd was engaged by ArtsWA 
to undertake an independent evaluation of the 
Arts Venture Capital Scheme.

• Advice given to all arts agencies on the New Tax 
System.

• The Arts Industry Training Needs Analysis was 
completed to inform future project development.

• Tripartite Funding Agreements with the West 
Australian Ballet, West Australian Opera, West 
Australian Symphony and Black Swan Theatre 
were nalised and executed in accordance with 
the Major Performing Arts Inquiry.

Public Affairs

• Three editions of Artsline, ArtsWA’s regular 
magazine, were published.

• Media statements were released on the 
outcomes of each funding round as well as on a 
range of special events and initiatives.

• ArtsWA’s website was regularly updated and 
maintained.

• ArtsWA was a primary contributor to the Australia 
Council publication Art & Facts.

• ArtsWA was invited to participate in a project 
visit to the Northern Territory for the development 
of the National Indigenous Tax Training Program 
Phase 2.

Forming Strategic Alliances

ArtsWA develops strategic alliances that result in 
valuable partnerships across government and the 
private sector to both increase and share resources 
for the benet of the arts.

• The Lotteries Commission is a key strategic 
partner for ArtsWA. In 2000-2001, the Lotteries 
Commission contributed $8.98 million to the Arts 
Investment Program. The Lotteries Commission 
is also involved in the development of an all-ages 
music events funding program.

• Healthway is another major partner. ArtsWA is 
represented on its Board and Healthway Arts 
Advisory Committee. Healthway is also involved 
in the development of an all-ages music events 
funding program.

• ArtsWA continues to work closely with the 
Australia Council on a wide range of issues 
including providing advice to artists on the 
Federal Government’s Tax Reform Package, 
development of an Audience Development 
position in the Pilbara region, and a mentoring 
program for contemporary music
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• ArtsWA liaises with the Ofce of Youth Affairs on 
grant applications for programs of mutual interest. 
The Ofce of Youth Affairs is also involved in the 
development of an all-ages music events funding 
program.

• ArtsWA worked closely with the Indian Ocean 
Territories, the Department of Territories and 
the Department of Premier and Cabinet for an 
agreement on the assessment of Indian Ocean 
Territory grant applications for arts projects 
through the ArtsWA Arts Development panel.

• The Department of Commerce and Trade 
is another major partner of ArtsWA, having 
contributed in 2000 - 2001 to the development 
of three Arts Edge positions in the Kimberley, 
Pilbara and Gascoyne regions, the development 
of an all-ages events funding program, the 
International Arts Development Coordinating 
Committee, working with the Ofce of Aboriginal 
Economic Development on the 1999 Western 
Australian Indigenous Business Awards - Cultural 
Industry Award and the International Indigenous 
Arts workshop.

• ArtsWA worked with the Education Department 
of Western Australia, the Kimberley Development 
Commission, the Pilbara Development 
Commission and the Kimberley College of TAFE 

– Broome Campus on the development of three 
Arts Edge positions in Kimberley, Pilbara and 
Gascoyne regions.

• ArtsWA liaised with the Department of Foreign 
Affairs on international arts projects and the 
Department of Foreign Affairs participated on 
the International Arts Development Coordinating 
Committee.

ArtsWA Management Initiatives

• Support of development of in-house expertise 
and extensive in-house training to all staff on the 
operation of the New Tax System and artists and 
arts organisations.

• Revisions were made to the GAS Database to 
make it more efcient.

• Training for all staff on the New Tax System.

• Amendments to application forms and application 
guidelines to make them more relevant.

COMPLIANCE REPORTS

Government’s Two-Year Plan For 
Women

ArtsWA has made a commitment to the 
advancement of the status of women through 
the Government’s Two-Year Plan for Women 
1999-2001. In meeting these commitments ArtsWA 
has established and maintained a website, which 
provides investment programs, policies, application 
forms, and an electronic version of the current issue 
of Artsline. The website is linked to other arts and 
cultural websites nationally, as well as the Ministry’s 
website, and is regularly updated.

ArtsWA has maintained its excellent record of gender 
balance on its panels. In 2000-2001, women chaired 
three of the ve panels. Women’s representation 
(including reserves) on boards and panels for 
2000-2001 was as follows:

• Aboriginal Arts Panel – 5 out of 8

• Young People and the Arts Panel – 9 out of 14

• Arts Development Panel – 15 out of 21

• Contemporary Music Reference Group – 5 out of 21

• Arts Censorship Advisory Committee – 3 out of 5

Regional Customer Service

Regional arts development is a priority area for 
ArtsWA.

ArtsWA employs a Regional and Community 
Development Project Ofcer and an Aboriginal Arts 
Project Ofcer who work closely with regional 
communities, and other organisations providing 
services to the regions, to ensure equitable access.
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Arts WA funds 23 major Arts Agencies on a triennial 
basis. Two of these, Country Arts WA and Art on the 
Move, provide dedicated services to the regions.

Country Arts WA receives funding of $900,000 
per annum to provide performing arts services 
to regional Western Australia. This includes 
$300,000 general purpose funding, $370,000 for 
regional touring, $100,000 for regional arts and 
cultural organisations, $25,000 for Country CAPS 
(Community Arts Project Scheme) and $115,000 
for Regional Arts Development. It is estimated that 
the State Government’s investment of $370,000 
for regional performing arts touring generates an 
additional $600,000 in funding and sponsorship from 
other sources.

An additional $750,000 over two years ($375,000 
in 2000-2001) has been devolved from the 
Australia Council’s Federal Regional Arts Fund for 
administration by Country Arts WA.

Art on the Move receives $188,000 per annum to 
support the touring of visual arts and crafts to 
regional Western Australia.

Community Arts Network WA (CANWA) is an 
Arts Agency that supports community cultural 
development. Services are provided to communities 
and local governments state-wide. ArtsWA has 
devolved funding targeted at regions and local 
planning to CANWA. $90,000 is devolved to CANWA 
from ArtsWA specically for Cultural Planning 
development within regional Western Australia. In 
1999-2000, CANWA allocated $89,000 to regional 
Western Australia through their Catalyst program.

In addition to the devolved programs, ArtsWA 
has three panels that assess applications for 
project funding: the Young People and the Arts, 
Aboriginal Arts and Arts Development Panels. Each 
of these panels includes regional representation and 
panellists are advised that regional applicants are a 
priority for support. During 2000-2001, 50 regionally 
based applications were received with 56% receiving 
funding support.

Approximately $159,510 funding has been provided 
through ArtsWA’s panels to support professional arts 
activities in regional Western Australia during the 
nancial period 2000-2001. 

Three part-time regional cultural development ofcer 
positions have been developed in cooperation with 
the Australia Council, Country Arts WA, CANWA, 
Department of Commerce and Trade, Education 
Department of WA, Kimberley Development 
Commission and the Pilbara Development 
Commission. These three Arts Edge positions will 
be located, respectively, in the Kimberley, Gascoyne 
and Pilbara regions. The Kimberley Arts Edge 
position has been the rst to be established and 
developed for implementation in 2001. The position 
will be located out of the Kimberley College of TAFE 

– Broome Campus.

Government’s Plan For Young People 

ArtsWA has made a commitment to increase the 
participation rate of young people in cultural activities 
and to increase the number of affordable youth 
oriented cultural activities and events across the 
State through the State Government’s Plan for Young 
People 2000-2003.

Current initiatives are referred to earlier in this 
document under the heading Strategic Area ‘Young 
People and the Arts’.

Other initiatives include - 

The Young People and the Arts 
Panel 
This panel ensures young people are involved in 
the decision-making processes related to ArtsWA’s 
investment in young people’s arts. All panelists are 
aged under 27 at the time of appointment by the 
Minister for Culture and the Arts. The panel assesses 
applications for project funding, quick response 
funding and fellowships. It also provides advice on 
other young people and the arts initiatives and 
assists in developing the young people and the arts 
policy, when requested. 
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Young People And The Arts Field 
Officer Program

This program aims to both identify and address some 
of the particular needs of young people, especially 
those who have less involvement in the arts. Since 
1998, eld ofcers have been hosted by Disability 
and Disadvantage in the Arts, the Rockingham 
City Council, Country Arts WA and the Mandurah 
Performing Arts Centre. Field ofcers have worked 
predominantly with young people. From 2000, this 
program was devolved to the Youth Arts Network 
initiative (see Future Directions).

Festivals

ArtsWA invests in AWESOME Arts Australia to 
provide international arts events for children aged 
6 to14 through the Awesome Perth International 
Children’s Festival. In 2000-2001, ArtsWA has 
supported Artrage through undertaking strategic 
review of the organisation and festival. The additional 
investment in the Festival promoting participation by 
young people 15 to 25 is part of this review.

Future Directions And Planned Action 
For Young People And The Arts

Youth Arts Network

ArtsWA is contributing $90,000 per year towards 
the establishment of a Youth Arts Network over a 
three-year trial period commencing in 2000. The 
network will provide information, support, training 
and workshops to young people interested in all art 
forms. It will also provide details about what’s on and 
where. The network will be managed predominantly 
by young people aged under twenty-six with support 
from a consortium involving Country Arts WA and 
the Youth Affairs Council of WA.

Contemporary Music

In 2000, ArtsWA worked on the beginning stages 
of a policy and three-year strategy to facilitate 
the development of the contemporary music 
industry in Western Australia. A Reference Group 
comprising industry representatives, people working 
on community based music development activities 
and young people was established with the role of 
considering and making recommendations on key 
areas identied for development.

A strategic alliance between ArtsWA, Healthway, 
the Ofce of Youth Affairs and the Lotteries 
Commission was established to run a pilot drug and 
alcohol-free, all-ages events funding program from 
2001. The Department of Commerce and Trade is 
also contributing to the pilot program. 

The pilot will focus on creating opportunities to 
develop performance, technical and management 
skills, as well as providing access to original 
contemporary music performances by, with and 
for young people. It will complement and enhance 
ongoing projects and events such as those managed 
through the WA Music Industry Association (WAMIA) 
and Youth Advisory Councils throughout the State. 

In 2001, the Ministry for Culture & the Arts will 
be appointing a new Contemporary Music Taskforce, 
which will include representation from both the 
contemporary music industry and key government 
departments. The Taskforce, managed by the Policy 
and Planning Division of the Ministry, will advise 
State Government on appropriate strategies for 
developing the Western Australian music industry in 
relation to key areas identied in the Government’s 
arts policy. This will include contributing to the 
development of the all-ages music events program. 
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Youth At Risk Arts Study in 
Partnership with the Industry Training 
Council 

ArtsWA has committed $5,000 towards production 
of a comprehensive report on best practice in 
arts projects for ‘youth at risk’, including successful 
case studies, establishment of a viable evaluation 
tool and a directory of resources available for 
work in this area. The report will be produced by 
the Western Australian Arts, Sport and Recreation 
Industry Training Council. On completion of this 
project, due late 2001, ArtsWA intends to liaise with 
Community Arts Network WA to hold workshops for 
artists to inform and encourage best practice, and to 
investigate options for increasing opportunities in this 
very important area.

Popular Culture Centre

This project is currently in development by 
Community Arts Network WA. The long-term vision 
is to establish an arts enterprise village located in 
Armadale where young people can live, work and 
learn. It will have space for young people to perform, 
exhibit and sell their work. Artists in residence from 
around the globe will interact with the young people 
to build an inspired global community. It will provide 
opportunities for international recognition through 
tourism, trade and the artists in residence programs, 
and will establish platforms for developing creative 
communities and young people’s networks. The 
Popular Culture Centre applies a strong emphasis 
on cultural diversity, with a current emphasis on 
rst people and young people of the Indian Ocean 
Rim. Already CANWA, through the Perth City 
Council, is managing a young peoples component 
(popular culture activities) in the Minawarra Festival 
in Armadale, some of the City of Armadale’s youth 
arts activities and popular culture training for young 
people. School-based and community programs 
have also commenced.
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MEMBERSHIP OF ARTSWA’S 
PANELS

Aboriginal Arts Panel
Mr Stephen Pigram - Chair

Ms Corina Martin - Chair

Mr Arthur Gear

Ms Debra-Lee Nordbruch

Mr Tjllyngoo (Lance Chadd)

Ms Doris Pilkington

Dr Rosemary van den Berg

Reserve Members:
Ms Colleen Castle

Young People And The Arts Panel 
Ms Zoë Atkinson - Chair

Ms Alison Hutchison

Ms Jane Neville

Mr Ean Grieve

Mr Neville Talbot

Ms Rebecca Dean

Ms Kylie Farmer

Mr Luke Rinaldi

Mr Brennan Smith

Reserve Members:

Mr Marcus Canning

Ms Amber Poole-Johnson 

Ms Beth McMahon 

Ms Eryn Kirk 

Mr Callum Prior 

Ms Stephanie Slack

Ms Tara Bollard

Ms Corinne Garces

Arts Development Panel
Ms Margaret Moore - Chair

Mr Ingle Knight

Mr Brendan Coleman

Ms Jacqui Sprogoe

Ms Annette Davis

Ms Rakini Devi

Ms Terri-ann White

Ms Reyes de Lara

Ms Heather Grace

Ms Jody Harrison

Mr Howard Shawcross

Ms Philippa Clarke

Mr Richard John

Ms Elizabeth Spencer

Ms Paige Gordon

Ms Marcelle Schmitz

Reserve Members:

Ms Dianne Wolfer

Ms Zoy Crizzle

Mr Alan Alder

Mr Chris McLeod

Mr Paul Moncreiff

Ms Jude van der Merwe

Ms Chrissie Parrott

Contemporary Music Reference Group
Mr Howard Shawcross - Chair 

Mr Frank Gugliotta (to December 2000)

Ms Connie Andersen (from December 2000)

Mr James Nagy

Mr Scott Adam

Mr Matthew de la Hunty

Ms Sue Hamersley

Mr Lee Kennedy 

Mr Michael Long 
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Mr Alan Pigram 

Mr Callum Prior 

Mr Jeremiah Riley Masters

Mr Alex Roper

Mr Brett Rowe 

Mr Paul Sloan

Mr Mark Tupman 

 
Reserve Members:

Ms Karen Lee 

Ms Eloise Rosenstein 

Mr Jeremy Manning

Mr David Weston 

Ms Sharmen Milne 

Arts Censorship Advisory Committee
Ms Maggie Baxter

Dr David Bromeld

Mr David Forrest

Ms Margaret Moore

Ms Delia Brown
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ARTSWA GRANTS FUNDING
2000 – 2001

MUSIC

Australian Piano Quartet
Commissioning of a work by Cathy Travers for 
presentation at the quartet’s annual recital series in July 
2002 $7,500 

City of Fremantle
Showcase original works by WA composers at the opening 
event of the Fremantle Festival 2000 $8,000 

Club Zho
Program of activities for 2001 - monthly new music events.  
$9,900 

Ms Wendy Cooper
Commissioning James Ledger to compose a new work for 
bassoon and backing CD, for national and international 
performance $2,412 

D.K. Music Management
Production and marketing of the debut CD album for the 
Western Australian band “Cartman” $6,000 

Mr Matthew de la Hunty
Marketing and promotion of the client’s latest collection of 
songs $6,000 

Elandra Ensemble
Production of two concerts in 2000 $8,943 
Production of four concerts for the 2001 concert series
 $25,000 

Mr Andrew Foote
Commission a new vocal, chamber and ensemble work
 $4,800 

Fourth Floor Collapse
A national tour to promote the band and its debut album
 $10,000 

Gilbert & Sullivan Society of WA
Employment of three professional musicians for the 50th 
Anniversary program of the society $4,050 

Hills Symphony Orchestra
Rehearsal and performance of two concerts $2,073 

Jazz Co-ordination Association of W.A.
Performances of Australian original jazz compositions for 
the Centenary of Federation celebrations $10,000 

Ms Ruth Lenz
Recording and production of a CD featuring new works for 
two guitars $4,309 

Magnetic Pig Productions
The premiere season of Lindsay Vickery’s ‘Rendezvous’ at 
the Perth International Arts Festival, 2001 $14,000 

Mr Tos Mahoney
Monthly new music event at Club Zho $4,235 

Mr Martin Vincent Moon
Promotion and distribution of a new CD entitled “When 
SharksSmell Love” under the group name King Wasabi
 $4,728 

Music Managers’ Forum
Assistance for WA music managers to attend the Music 
Managers Forum’s National Conference and management 
course, Queensland $5,000 

Myrtle
Production and marketing of a CD and video clip $10,000 

Nova Ensemble Incorporated
Tour of a new programme of contemporary music $11,000 

Mr Darryl Poulsen
Commission a new musical composition for horn, violin 
and piano from Roger Smalley $6,000 

Rhibosome
Promotional tour to the United Kingdom $11,000 

Mr Roly Skender
Production of an audio/visual CD $5,000 

Spank
Production of a CD and promotional video $6,090 

Mr Paul Tanner
Production of two CDs of the Ogden-Tanner duo $4,000 

Tura Events Co Ltd
Auspicing of project for “Vertigo” - establishment of a 
contemporary chamber music series $7,000 

WA Music Industry Association Inc
Annual program of activities, 2001 $40,000 

Total Music $237,040
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DANCE

Ms Felicity Bott
Development of a dance performance/installation 
incorporating the directorial skills of Barry Laing $12,000 

Ms Shannon Bott
Development and production of a dance theatre work
 $8,000 
Development and production of the third stage of a dance 
theatre work $10,000 

Mr Robert Griffin
Dance theatre work combining Aikido with contemporary 
dance $15,000 

ID 339 Dance Group
Program of dance activities $30,000 

Kulcha Multicultural Arts Centre of WA
Workshop and performance program by the Egyptian 
dervishing ensemble “Tannoura” (Auspiced project )
 $12,000 

Latin American Cultural Association
Performance of new WA contemporary folklore dance 
work $10,000 

Ms Danielle Micich
A choreographic investigation exploring the potential of 
movement for two different audiences $7,000 
A residency at the Choreographic Centre, Canberra, 
exploring the potential of digitally enhanced images and 
other material $10,365 

Ms Olivia Millard
Further development and performance of a narrative 
based dance work $19,000 
Creative development of a new dance work for three 
women $12,733 

Mr Paul O’Sullivan
Creation of a dance theatre duet based on Freud’s theories 
of ego states $11,000 
Redevelop and perform ‘Near Enemies’ and ‘Crossing The 
Line’ $17,050 

Ms Chrissie Parrott
Dance/theatre work based on the medieval story of Tristan 
and Isolde $19,500 

Total Dance $193,648

LITERATURE

Ms Michal Gwyn Bosworth
Write a book about Exmouth and Cyclone Vance $7,000 

Centre for Studies in Australian Literature, 
UWA

Publication of the literary magazine “Westerly” in 2001
 $20,000 

Disk Committee
Presentation and promotion of WA literary writing $3,686 

EMPOWA Inc.
‘Perth Poetica’ workshop events $4,550 

Fellowship of Australian Writers WA
Program of Activities, 2001 $30,000 

Fremantle Arts Centre Press
Publication of a Czech edition of short stories by Gail 
Jones, “Fetish Lives” $1,870 

Ms Valerie Hobson
Research and write a social and cultural history of 
shearing $5,000 

Ms Patricia Jacobs
Research the relationship between the Irish Sisters and 
Aboriginal women of Beagle Bay $8,000 

Liz Byrski Communications and Training
Write a complete rst draft of a non-ction book $6,000 

Peter Cowan Writers Centre Inc
Annual Program of Activities, 2000 $17,500 

Ms Marcella Polain
Research and development of a collection of poetry $7,500 

Dr Carolyn Polizzotto
Work on ‘Aphra’, a non-ction book $8,000 

Mr Stephen Scourfield
Completion of work on a novel based in North-Western 
Australia, reecting Australian society and family history
 $8,000 

Storytelling Guild of Australia (WA) Inc.
Participation of WA storytellers in the Adelaide National 
Storytelling Confest $5,000 

University of Western Australia Press
Publication of biography of C Y O’Connor $5,000 
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WA State Literature Officer Inc.
Creation of a WA State Literature Centre $18,000 

Walking On Water
Provision of a venue for established and emerging writers 
and performers to present their work $2,670 

Ms Katrina Watson
Writing of a novel for young adults $5,000 

WEB
A series of ve performances involving literature, music 
and dancing $2,555 

Total Literature $165,331

VISUAL ARTS & CRAFTS
Art Monthly Australia

Employment of Western Australian writers on visual arts 
and crafts $2,000 

Association of Australian Gallery Guiding 
Organisations
“Crossing Cultures”, a four day conference hosted by the 
Association  $2,000 

Australian Centre for Craft and Design
Publication of critical writing in 4 issues of Object 
magazine $2,000 

Mr John Barrett-Lennard
Write an illustrated survey of Australian contemporary art 
and artists $8,000 

Mr Philip Berry
Production of a body of work depicting the changing face 
of Perth and local characters $5,000 

Dr David Bromfield
Research and write a study in book form of sculptor Stuart 
Elliott $4,000 

Ceramic Arts Association of Western 
Australia Inc

Series of international workshops and exhibition focusing 
on contemporary tableware $11,500 

City of Albany
A collaborative public art project between the Southern 
Aboriginal Corporation, Homeswest and the Vancouver 
Arts Centre $10,000 

City of Swan
Aboriginal artists of the South West: the Past and Present 
project $4,000 

Ms Melanie Dare
Creation of work for an exhibition at the Moores Building in 
Fremantle $2,500 

Ms Annette Davis
Curate and tour the Intervention exhibition $6,500 

Mr Jon Denaro
An exhibition of sculpture at the Fremantle Arts Centre, 
linked to the symbiotica project $5,000 

Dr Dorothy Erickson
Production of a monograph/catalogue, “Dorothy Erickson - 
New Work” $10,000 

Mr Peter Gelencser
Production of a retrospective portfolio $4,000 

Ms Michelle Glaser
An exhibition entitled “Pizza Surprise” taking art out of the 
gallery via mechanisms commonly associated with pizza 
delivery $8,000 

Mr Rodney Glick
Development and production of a multi-image video 
installation that follows the route of the Great Eastern 
Highway $8,000 

Mr Walter Gomes
Presentation of an exhibition of collaborative work $3,716 

Ms Barbie Greenshields
Sculpture exhibition titled “Celebratory Cakes: Monuments 
to Moments’ at the Vancouver Arts Centre, Albany $2,500 

Mr Thomas Hoareau
Development of a six part painting installation $5,000 

International Art Space Kellerberrin
Two inter-related projects which encourage interaction 
between contemporary artists and communities $25,000 

Ms Jillian Kempson
Research in France towards artworks for an exhibition at 
Galerie Dusseldorf $7,000 

Mr Jeremy Kirwan-Ward
Production of a colour catalogue recording the large scale 
works exhibited at the Perth International Arts Festival 
2001 $6,000 

Lawrence Wilson Art Gallery, UWA
Retrospective exhibition of the work of Allan Baker $7,000 
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Loop!
Production of a site specic visual art installation $5,612 

Ms Kate McMillan
Exhibition of sculptural work at the Perth Institute of 
Contemporary Arts $4,000 
Two part exhibition ‘Parallel World’ at IASKA and the John 
Curtin Gallery $6,000 

Melville Community Arts Association Inc.
Chinese contemporary art exhibition to be showcased as 
the main event in the City of Melville Arts Festival $9,000 

Ms Sharyn Moore 
An exhibition titled ‘Home Visit’ at the Australian War 
Memorial, Canberra $3,652 

Ms Mona Neumann
Research and development for a photographic and mixed 
media exhibition $3,000 

Portuguese Educational and Intercultural 
Association of WA

Azulejo Assembled Memories public art ceramic project
 $5,000 

Mr Stuart Ringholt
Creation of monochrome paintings and models for an 
exhibition $5,000 

Ms Fleur Schell
Development of a series of works in porcelain and mixed 
media for a solo exhibition $7,000 

Shire of Roebourne
Production of three public artworks $10,000 

Viktor Eszenyi & Co
An exhibition of artworks at Gomboc Gallery $2,500 

WA Centre for Photography
Co-ordination of an annual programme of photographic 
exhibitions and related activities $20,000 

Ms Cecile Williams
Development of a new body of work for an exhibition
 $5,000 

Total Visual Arts & Crafts $234,480

THEATRE

Agelink Reminiscence Theatre
Production of ‘Quartet’ by Ronald Harwood $20,000 

Australian National Playwrights’ Centre
Annual program of activities, 2001 $2,000 

Australian Script Centre Inc
Annual program of support by the Centre for Australian 
performance writers $5,000 

Mr Chris Baker
Production of Joanna Murray-Smith’s “Redemption” $9,855 

Bizircus Association Inc.
Hosting of an international circus festival in WA $25,000 

Mr Rick Brayford
Research and development of a dramatic work $5,580 

Collective Unconscious Inc.
A production of Dawson Nichols’ “I Might Be Edgar Allan 
Poe” at the Melbourne Fringe Festival $12,000 

Denmark Arts Council Inc
A tour by ‘Hypertheatre’ of the ‘The Big Spread’ to three 
regional towns (auspiced grant) $9,000 

Effie Crump Theatre
Annual program of activities, 2000 $20,000 

Handzon Theatre Company Inc
Production of lunchtime theatre performances $6,000 

Hole in the Wall Theatre Company
Staging of a major revival of the play “Ghosts” by Henrik 
Ibsen $25,000 

Mr Geoff Kelso
Creation of a comic theatre piece based on the style of 
Commedia dell’Arte $18,882 

Lunar Circus
Development of new works $8,500 

Mr Lachlan McDonald
Marketing and showcasing of “Burning Bush” to interstate 
and international Markets through printed materials and a 
website $4,600 

Ms Heather Nimmo
Further development of the play “The Other Woman” 
 $7,460 

Ms Karen Roberts
A course of intensive theatre study in the UK and Europe
 $7,000 

Ms Marchelle Schmitz
Staging of three plays by Daniel Keene $15,033 
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Spare Parts Theatre (Inc.)
Presentation of a children’s puppetry show entitled “Small 
Giants” (auspiced For the group Strange Arrangements)
 $15,000 

Mr Ian Wilding
Presentation of a production of “The Guest” $18,000 

Total Theatre $233,910

MULTI-ARTFORMS

Asialink
Residencies for artists and arts managers in Asia in 2001
 $7,000 

Bizircus Association Inc.
Production of a new street theatre work for the Perth 
International Arts Festival $8,000 

City of Fremantle
Transformation of Pioneer Park into ‘Uglieland’ for the 
Fremantle Festival $10,000 

Mr Ben Laden
Research and development of the performance event “The 
Garden” in preparation for a European tour $10,000 
Production of “ The Garden” installation project $15,000 

Total Multi-Artforms $50,000

YOUNG PEOPLE & THE ARTS

Artworks Visual ArtsTheatre Incorporated
A ve week mentoring project resulting in the creation of a 
short work $3,500 

Association of Relatives and Friends of the 
Mentally Ill

Mentor for Christine George, to assist in the creation of a 
novel $1,500 

Australian Band and Orchestra Directors 
Association (WA)

Commission a new music composition for performances 
by school level orchestras at WA school orchestra festivals
 $800 

AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd
Devolution of Minifestival funding  $67,500 

Bizircus Association Inc.
Development and production of a new circus work by 
young people $4,500 

Carclew Youth Arts Centre
Production of six issues of “Lowdown” magazine in 2001, 
and one issue of “Directions” course guide $5,000 

City of Mandurah
Skills development workshops in street theatre and other 
disciplines leading to a community street theatre festival
 $3,000 

City of Rockingham
Development of a multi-artform event for young people by 
the Rockingham Youth Arts and Culture Council (Auspiced 
grant) $4,000 

Community Arts Network WA Inc
Establishment and management of a young people’s arts 
network In collaboration with Country Arts WA and the 
Youth Affairs Council of WA $90,000 

Country Arts (WA) Inc
Employment of a regional Youth Arts Field Ofcer $20,000 

Ms Sarah Douglas
A collaborative project of artists working with young 
females to develop a mural in the Daglish train station 
underpass $2,000 

Esperance Community Arts Inc.
Employment of a youth arts co-ordinator $7,000 

Mr Murray Figg
Compilation CD of WA metal punk and hip hop $3,500 

Fitzroy River Lodge Pty Ltd & Leedal Ltd
Promotion of artworks $3,000 

The Giovanni Consort
Annual programme of three concerts $6,500 

Mr Ryan Grieve
Production and launch of a local, original 4-track 
promotional CD for the group Flux Capacitor $2,800 

Heavy Weight Champ
A promotional tour of New South Wales, Victoria and 
South Australia $3,000 

Hedland Arts Council (Hartz) Inc.
Remounting and touring the production “Evermore” to 
include youth from different areas and backgrounds 
(Auspiced project) $7,000 
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Insight Out Youth Arts Inc.
Further development and expansion of Gibber Magazine
 $11,500 

Mr Scott Koehler
Research and development stage of a solo performance 
combining puppetry and theatre $4,800 

Kununurra Youth Services Inc
Presentation of a series of workshops to improve access to 
the arts in remote and isolated areas of the East Kimberley
 $4,500 
Performance of ‘Deadly Stories’ at Deadly Fusion Festival
 $4,000 

Ms Paea Leach
Professional development through attendance at the 
International Summer Dance Festival in Austria $2,500 

Library & Information Services, City of 
Melville

Workshops at Bull Creek Library resulting in the writing 
and illustration of a book of short stories $3,030 

Ms Cadi McCarthy
Development of a dance work entitled “The Awkwardness 
of First Meetings” involving four professional dance artists
 $8,000 

Mundaring Arts Centre Inc. 
Employment of a young artist to design the interior of the 
Mundaring Youth Café $7,290 

Newman Arts Council Inc.
Opening ceremony oat parade at the Fortescue Festival
 $4,500 

Ms Marie O’Dwyer
Recording and promotion of a solo debut single $2,500 

Ok Tokyo
Recording and promotion of a ve track EP $2,800 

Ran Dan Club Association Inc
Production of the Hilton Messenger community storytelling 
project $4,000 

Rhibosome
Performance of live music for the production “Girls’ Gear, 
Boys’ Break” $7,000 

Ms Danielle Rock
Development of a dance theatre piece $5,000 

Mr Alex Roper
Music workshops for young people at a contemporary 
music venue  $4,000 

Shakespearience
South West season of theatrical performances based on 
works by William Shakespeare $3,500 

South of the River Music Association 
Experiment

Production of a series of pilot issues of a local music, youth 
arts and culture street press magazine $3,000 

STEPS, Youth Dance Company
Dance Scholarship for Young People 2000 – 2001 $2,500 

Te Rangatahi Maori Club Inc.
Series of youth community workshops in Perth, Joondalup, 
Rockingham and Bunbury $7,000 

Tetrafide Percussion
A series of workshops to create, evaluate and further 
develop workshop and school programs $4,000 

Ms Kim Tyrer
Solo exhibition at the Gady Gallery $750 

Visual Arts Foundation of WA Inc
Placement of professional artists in WA rural schools and 
communities $3,000 

Walkington Theatre
Hosting of the 2001 2HOT Youth Festival $6,000 

West Australian Youth Jazz Orchestra
Music Scholarship for Young People 2000-2001 $2,500 

Western Australian Guitar Ensemble Inc.
Commission of work for the guitar ensemble 

“Guitarstrophe” from composer Dominik Karski $3,000 

Western Australian Youth Theatre
Creation of four theatre projects for young people $10,000 

Ms Sheryl Wong
Present an exhibition of images of African women now 
resident in WA $4,000 

Wongutha Caps
Recording and promotion of a CD $2,700 

Ms Sandra Woo
Studio showing of four short works by four choreographers
 $5,000 

Ms Jasmine Yee
Recording of a CD for the Perth band Halogen $3,000 

Total Young People and the Arts $369,970
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QUICK RESPONSE FUND FOR YOUNG 
PEOPLE

Art and Cultural Development Council of 
Geraldton

Conduct a skateboard motif design workshop for young 
people in Geraldton $1,200 

Ms Rebecca Bradley
Attendance by invitation at an intensive workshops series 
at the London Academy of Music and Dramatic Arts
 $1,000 

Ms Katrina Faulds
Participation in an international fortepiano workshop in 
Belgium $1,750 

Ms Laura Green
A residency with Wenatchee Youth Circus to practice and 
perform as an international member of the troupe $2,995 

Jobs South West
Recording and mixing techniques workshops for young 
people (auspiced for Busselton Youth Advisory Council)
 $2,970 

Karratha Youth Theatre
Theatrical production of Nick Enrights play ‘Blackrock’
 $3,000 

Kununurra District High School
Development and performance by young people of a script 
based on local community issues $3,000 

Mosman Park Arts Foundation
Production of a short play with music for young people 
(auspiced for Hi-NRG Youth Theatre) $2,500 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts
A group exhibition titled “Tactical Intervention Strategies”, 
Involving sixteen separate projects $3,000 

Ruby’s Grace
A ten-day tour of the Northern Territory, incorporating 
performances as part of the Darwin Festival season
 $2,000 

Salt Bush Youth Festival Inc.
A drug and alcohol free music festival $1,500 

Shire of Collie
Music workshops at the Collie Culture Kaleidoscope 
Festival $860 

Shire of Northam
A weekend program of activities for the Wundowie Youth 
Advisory Council $650 

The Sleepy Jackson
Performances as support band to Jebediah on a national 
tour $2,500 

Mr Jeremy Smith
Participation in a professional development program at the 
Banff Centre in Canada $3,000 

Spencer Tracy
Promotional tour to showcase the band to major recording 
labels in the Eastern States of Australia $3,000 

Team Jedi
Tour of the band to the Pacic Circle Music Expo in Sydney 
and play a performance in Melbourne $3,000 

Village Idiot Theatre
Presentation of an evening’s entertainment of absurdist 
theatre $3,000 

Ms Lisa-Marie Walters
Participation in a dance media workshop in the United 
States $925 

Ms Genevieve Wilkins
Performances with the Global Freeway Australian Youth 
Orchestra on two separate tours $3,000 

Total Quick Response Fund $44,850

ABORIGINAL ARTS

Abmusic Aboriginal Corporation
Development and production of a CD and cassette 
recording of the songs of Fred Penny, entitled “A Penny For 
Your Thoughts” (auspiced project) $5,000 

Showcasing young musicians to the local community 
through the production of two community concerts $3,000 

Aruwarri Aboriginal Corporation
Organisation of a cultural festival, 2001 $6,000 

Ms Donna Atkins
Performance of Christmas concerts for the elderly and 
disabled $600 

Ms Normae Bennett
Solo exhibitions of paintings and crafts at three South West 
festivals $3,000 
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Blood Wood Tree Association
Co-ordination of the Nindji Ninji family cultural festival
 $17,600 

Mr Peter Brandy
Performance at the Woodford Folk Festival in Queensland
 $1,000 

Bugarrigarra Nyurdany Aboriginal Corporation
Production of art from indigenous storytelling $8,000 

Bunbury Regional Arts Management Board
Presentation of WirdaninyTime 2001, a regionally based 
Noongar cultural festival (auspiced project) $5,000 
Assistance towards conducting a Noongar cultural festival
 $2,000 

Ms Maxine Anne Charlie
Solo exhibition including research and inspirational eld 
trip $5,000 

Ms Julie Clampett
A collaboration of female artists to design and manufacture 
garments for modelling at WANDIE’s “Spring in the Valley” 
festival weekend $2,900 

Coalition of Peoples
“Survival 2001”, a celebration of indigenous culture, 
heritage and achievements $15,000 

Ms Janet Collard
Writing of an autobiography $3,000 

Miss Theona Councillor
Recording of a CD and tape of original songs $4,000 

Mrs Margaret Danischewsky
A joint exhibition with Naomi Danischewsky $4,000 

Dindima Aboriginal Culture Company
Recording of a CD of original songs $2,000 

Djarindjin Band
Recording of original material at Goolarri Media studios

 $5,000 

Doorum Dancers
Participation in the 4th National Aboriginal Dance 
Conference $3,000 

Mr Raymond Edney
Production of CDs and cassettes from existing material for 

“Gubinge Road” $4,000 

Fallout
Production of the band’s rst recording, at Goolarri Media 
studios $5,000 

Mr Fred Gesha
Promotion of the applicant’s music through the production 
and distribution of a CD of original recordings $4,000 

Goolarri Media Enterprises Pty Ltd
National Indigenous Dance Forum 2000 (grant auspiced 
on behalf of Modern Dreamtime Dancers) $10,000 

Mr Kevin Gunn
Re-mastering of tapes and conversion to CD and tape for 
distribution and marketing $3,000 

Hedland Arts Council (Hartz) Inc.
Rosalind Dann’s “Beyond The Waves” exhibition (auspiced 
project) $3,000 

Mr Bevan Howard
Production of artwork resulting in an exhibition $3,000 

Mr Reynold James Indich
Production of a CD of original country music $4,000 

Mr James Kearing
Composition and production of a CD and touring to 
Germany $4,000 

Kellerberrin Aboriginal Progress Association
Noongar Cultural Festival, Kellerberrin, 2000 $7,500 
Noongar Cultural Festival, Kellerberrin, 2001 $4,000 

Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre
Establishment of a cultural maintenance program at 
Jarlmadangah community $15,000 
Production of the fourth Kimberley Aboriginal Law and 
Culture Festival $8,000 

Ms Shirley Lowden 
Framing costs for artwork for an exhibition at Derbal 
Yerrigan $2,000 

Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency
Participation in the Broome Youth Festival $5,000 

Mindibungu Aboriginal Corporation
Cultural painting workshops $5,000 

Ms Caroline Narkle
Exhibition and marketing of artworks $4,500 

Ngaanyatjarra Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara 
Women’s Council

A national touring exhibition entitled “Manguri Weaving” 
featuring work of women from the Nagaanyatjarra 
communities $5,000 

“Meeting Rawa” exhibition celebrating 20 years of NPY 
Women’s Council $4,000 
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Mr Colin Pigram
Recording and production of a CD $4,000 

Pipeline
Promotion of the applicant’s music through production and 
distribution of a CD of original recordings $4,000 

Mr Mark Radloff
An exhibition at a Perth gallery $3,500 

Shire of Murray
Production of a public artwork evoking the six Nyungar 
seasons $6,000 

Mr Frank Shoveller
Recording of an album of original songs $4,000 

Southcare Inc.
Provision of an Aboriginal arts program $2,000 

Mr Alfred Taylor
Employment of an editor to edit the manuscript ‘God, The 
Devil and Me’ $4,000 

Mr Gerard Warber
Research and writing of a family history $4,000 

Warmun Art Centre
Program of arts and cultural development for the Warmun 
community $8,500 

Mrs Kathleen Yarran
Documentation of the applicant’s life story $3,000 

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre
Further script and performance development of “Alice” 
(auspiced project) $7,000 
Kelton Pell and Geoff Kelso to develop and produce a play 
called “Happy Families” (auspiced project) $15,000 
Production of “Alice” by Alice Haines at the 2001 Perth 
International Arts Festival $10,000 

Youth Involvement Council
Employment of a local Aboriginal artist to run community 
arts workshops with young Aboriginal people $4,000 

Yura Yungi Aboriginal Medical Service
Participation in a national Aboriginal dance conference 
and youth dance forum $8,000 

Total Aboriginal Arts $282,100

CREATIVE DEVELOPMENT FUND

Ms Pamela Gaunt
Creative Development Fellowship $20,000 

Mr Ingle Knight
Creative Development Fellowship $20,000 

Mr Jurek Wybraniec
Creative Development Fellowship $30,000 

Mr Aaron Beach
Professional Development Fellowship $10,000 

Total Creative Development Fund $80,000

ARTFLIGHT

Adam Said Galore
Invitation to play with the Australian band “Something for 
Kate”, and other Performances in the Eastern States of 
Australia $1,500 

Mr Hands Arkeveld
Participation in an international sculpture exhibition in 
Holland $1,500 

Mrs Pieternella Armstrong
An exhibition of art work at the ‘Mildura Palimpsest #4’ 
symposium $750 

Art On The Move
Travel by Kate Noakes and Rusty Peters to develop 
an education package for WA and interstate touring 
exhibitions $2,000 

Australian National Playwrights’ Centre
Travel of WA artists to the 2001 National Playwrights’ 
Conference $2,000 

AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd
Attendance at the 2001 Seattle Children’s Festival and the 
Asia Pacic Producers and Presenters Network, Tacoma
 $1,500 

Ms Cynthia Margaret Baker
Attendance at a seminar of The Quilt Study Group of 
Australia & Canberra Quilters Inc. in Canberra $440 

Mr Max Ball
Attendance as artist-in-residence at the Mulgara Gallery, 
Ayers Rock, Northern Territory $500 

Mr John Barrett-Lennard
Participation in a museum leadership workshop with a 
prominent Museum Management consultant $656 

The Beatknickers
Performances at the 10th National Circus Festival in NSW, 
and preparation towards hosting the Rottnest Island Circus 
Festival in September 2001 $1,374 
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Ms Jill Belbin
Participation in an international summer workshop on the 
fortepiano in Belgium $1,500 

Belmont City College
Representation by a year ten drama group at the National 
Lions Convention Youth on Health drama festival $500 

Bizircus Association Inc.
Attendance by two performers at the Chaos and Synergy 
National Circus and Physical Theatre Conference $1,300 

Black Swan Theatre Company
Promotional visit to Surabaya and Jakarta, Indonesia
 $1,200 
Attendance of company representatives at the Shanghai 
Arts Festival $1,000 

Ms Maggie Blick
Attendance and participation in the Canberra WordFest
 $400 

Bordello
Promotional tour of the band to New South Wales and 
Victoria $2,000 

Ms Cathryn Burgess
Performances by invitation at the Welsh Opera School, UK
 $1,500 

Buzz Dance Theatre Limited
Travel by the General Manager to explore performance 
opportunities in the Eastern States $925 

Ms Kate Campbell-Pope
Professional development work in Sydney, NSW $500 

Ms Madeleine Clear
Promotion of the client’s work at the Fleurieu Biennale, 
South Australia $556 

Ms Sue Codee
Attendance at the Warlayirti Culture Centre opening in 
Balgo Hills, WA $1,500 

Country Arts (WA) Inc
Attendance of Travis Beasley at the Johns Hopkins 
University International Philanthropy Conference in 
Melbourne $600 

Craftwest Centre for Contemporary Craft Inc
Airfare for Lorraine Fitzpatrick to attend a job interview in 
Perth $428 

Croatian Drama Group “Ivan Gundulic” WA
Attendance by the Director of the group at a drama 
seminar in Croatia $1,500 

Mr Greg Crowe
Participation in the national ceramics event ‘Clayfeast’, in 
Gulgong, NSW $550 

Ms Colleen Cruise
Attendance at the Netfest Web Content Creation & 
Acquisition

Conference in Melbourne $600 

Mr Andrew Daly
Attendance and participation at the opening of a group 
exhibition in Melbourne $550 

Mr Stephen Dedman
Travel to United States to publicise and promote literary 
works $1,500 

Desert Child
Assistance towards travel costs to attend the Nannup and 
Fairbridge Festivals $2,000 

Mr Sander Dijkstal
Promotional visit the Milan Furniture Fair $1,500 

Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the 
Arts Australia

Attendance at the DADAA national network “Face To Face” 
meeting, and the Pakti Conference, Northern Territory and 
Queensland $470 
Attendance of the Community Program Manager to 
present a paper at the Microgroove conference in Sydney
 $670 

Mr Michael Doherty
Exhibition of paintings in New York City, featuring WA 
landscapes and seascapes $1,500 

Ms Anita Downes
Performances at the Woodford Folk Festival, followed by 
promotional performances in Sydney $1,000 

Downsyde
Performances and promotion of CD in Adelaide $1,800 

Mr Paul Duke
Visit to Sydney and Melbourne to establish new gallery 
outlets $720 

Dumbartung Aboriginal Corporation
Attendance of Dumbartung representatives at a marketing 
and cross-cultural exchange project in Belgium $1,500 

Mr Abraham Dunovits
Travel to Melbourne for a series of performances with a 
colleague $450 



Ministry For Culture & The Arts: Annual Report 2000 – 2001 62 

ArtsWA - Grants Funding 2000-2001

Mr Christopher Edmondson
Attendance and performance at the 2001 Tamworth 
Country Music Festival $797 

Mr Ernst Ellemunter
Performance and exhibition at International Art-
Environment Symposium, Korea $1,000 

Dr Dorothy Erickson
Attendance at solo exhibition in Europe, and promotional 
visits to other cities $1,500 

Mr Colin Falconer
Participation in panels and readings as part of the 
Brisbane Writers’ Festival $800 

Mr Galliano Fardin
Attendance at the opening of an exhibition featuring the 
applicant’s paintings at the Art Gallery of NSW $550 

Fathole’s Lounge
Attendance at the “Next Big Thing” statewide band 
competition $1,500 

Fremantle Arts Centre Press
Wendy Jenkins’ attendance at the Melbourne Writers 
Festival for both the youth and adult programs (auspiced 
project) $600 

Mr Luke Gabbedy
Participation in the Opera Theatre and Music Festival of 
Lucca in Italy $1,200 

Gallery East
Attendance at the Australian Contemporary Art Fair 
(ACAF) in Melbourne $600 

Mr Richard Mark Giblett
Installation of artwork for a contemporary exhibition titled 

“Octopus” in Melbourne $590 

Mr Todd Gogol
Attendance at the International String Conference in 
Brisbane $847 

Ms Roxanne Grant
Creation of an installation for ‘Mildura Palimpsest #4’, a 
national arts and science symposium $750 

Mr Graham Hay
Attendance at the international paperclay exhibition 
opening, seminar and book launch in St Andrews, 
Scotland $1,500 
Participation in “On Paper”, an international paper 
exhibition and workshops in London, UK $1,500 

Mr Nigel Hewitt
Attendance at an exhibition of the artist’s work in 
Melbourne $682 

Ms Jennifer Hill
Performances and workshops at the ‘2001 Future Is Here’ 
conference in Melbourne $600 

Ms Penny Hudson
Attendance as artist-in-residence at the Mulgara Gallery in 
the Northern Territory $500 

Mr Matthew Hunt
Creation of an installation at an exhibition at Westspace 
Gallery, Melbourne $656 

ID 339 Dance Group
Travel to Melbourne to perform “Cats ‘n’ Dogs” as part of 
the Fringe Festival’s subsidised program $1,200 
Travel to Melbourne to perform “Go Cats Go Dogs” at the 
International Comedy Festival $1,500 

Ms Dorothy Ruth Jaeger
Presentation of a paper and workshop at the 12th National 
Education Conference, Melbourne $600 

Jam ‘n Music Network
Marketing and recording initiative at the “Jazz 2000 and 
Beyond” forum at the Wangaratta Festival $766 

Jazz Co-ordination Association of W.A.
Presentation of the WA jazz ensemble “Bluezone” at the 
Melbourne International Jazz Festival $2,000 

Joob
Performances and promotional visit to Adelaide  $2,000 

Mr Dominik Karski
Attendance at the New Music Symposium at Domaine 
Forget, Quebec Canada $1,500 

Ms Kaye Keam
Attendance and workshopping at the 5th Pacic Rim 
Conference in Melbourne $800 

Mr Peter Keelan
Performances by “Tok Pan Tok” at the Woodford Folk 
Festival, Queensland $1,500 

Mr Geoff Kelso
Participation in the 24 hour play project at the Downstairs 
Theatre, Belvoir Street, Sydney $487 

Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Service Council
Marie Cox’s presentation of the keynote address at the 
Australian Network for Arts in Health annual forum, Cairns
 $1,000 
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Ms Guundie Kuchling
Travel to undertake the May Gibbs Children’s Literature 
Trust Fellowship $550 

Kulcha Multicultural Arts Centre of WA
Attendance at the “Arts in Focus” forum at the Melbourne 
Festival $1,400 

Ms Monique La Fontaine
Participation in the Melbourne exhibition entitled “Red»
 $700 

Mr Garry Lee
Participation in the “Jazz 2000 + Beyond” forum in 
Wangaratta, Victoria $766 

Miss Sheng Fang Liang
Attendance at the Shanghai International Festival of Arts
 $750 

Ms Brigid Lowry
Participation in the Brisbane Writers’ Festival $850 

Ms Sine MacPherson
Freight costs for artworks and attendance at an installation 
and opening of an exhibition in Sydney $600 

Magenta Group Pty Ltd
Jamie Mills’ travel to Los Angeles for the creation of a 
painting forming a component of a lm by Kai Soremekun 
(auspiced project) $1,500 

Mr Alex Manfrin
Performance of a 4-week season of “John How-Odd” as 
part of the Melbourne International Comedy Festival $550 

Ms Gabrielle Mazalevskis
Participation in a cultural exchange project in Shanghai
 $1,500 

Ms Sandy McKendrick
Participation in workshops and panel activities at the “2001 
Future Is Here”conference in Melbourne $600 

Ms Deborah McKendrick
Attendance at the Helpmann Awards for the performing 
arts, in Sydney $550 

Mrs Angela Mellor
Attendance at the international ceramic competition 

“CEBIKO” in Korea $1,000 

Mosman Park Arts Foundation
Attendance by a member of Hi-NRG Theatre at the ATYP 
National Studio project in Alice Springs $440 

Ms Sandra-Lee Murphy
Participation in the ‘2001 New York Studio School Drawing 
and Painting Marathon’ in Adelaide $500 

Ms Regina Noakes
Attendance at a solo exhibition of paintings at the Agora 
Gallery, New York $1,500 

Nova Ensemble Incorporated
Performances and workshops by Mark Cain at the “The 
Come Out 2001” youth arts festival, Adelaide $685 

Mr Paul O’Connor
Attendance at a solo exhibition in Sydney $550 

Pickled Fairy And Other Myths, The
Performances of children’s shows at the Shinju Matsuri 
Festival in Broome $1,500 

Mr Michael Pigneguy 
Presentation of jazz ensemble “The Michael Pigneguy 
Sextet” at the Melbourne International Jazz Festival
 $2,000 

Mr Stephen Pigram
Performances at Message Sticks 2001, in Sydney $1,500 

Prawns with Horns
A tour of Victoria including two major music festivals in 
March 2001 $1,800 

Mr Garry Pumfrey
Attendance and participation in a group exhibition of 
emerging Australian artists in Melbourne $550 

pvi collective
A three-week residency at the Performance Space in 
Sydney $2,000 

Real Amber Records
Invitation to conduct a national tour in partnership with the 
Victorian band “Deloris” and launch of a new CD $2,000 

Mr Alwin Reamillo
A 12-week artist residency and installation project in 
Manila and Hong Kong $1,500 

Ms Bree Riseborough
Attendance at Talente 2001 in Munich, Germany $1,720 

Mr Arthur Robinson
Participation in the 9th Antonio Stradivari International 
Triennial violin making competition in Cremona, Italy
 $1,500 
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Mr Kim Scott
Attendance in Melbourne and Sydney at launches of the 
novel Benang $780 
Participation in “Message Sticks 2001” in Sydney  $600 

Miss Amanda Shelsher
Attendance at the Potters Society of Australia exhibition in 
Sydney $670 

Mr Alan Smith
Participation in a showcasing visit for Lux Mammoth to 
USA $1,500 

Suitcase Circus
Attendance of Annie Stainer as a guest teacher at the 
International Workshop Festival, London (auspiced project)
 $1,000 
Participation in the world summit on “Social Circus” in 
Montpelier, France $1,500 

Ms Shirley Tait
Attendance at the Voices and Spaces: Indigenous and 
Multicultural Writing for the new Millennium conference in 
Canberra as keynote speaker $744 

Ms Barbara Temperton
Participation in the Varunna Writers’ Centre Poetry 
Mentorship Program with Dorothy Porter $750 

Tetrafide Percussion
Attendance of Neville Talbot at the Global Freeway 
Australian Youth Orchestra’s national music camp in the 
administration program $600 

Textile Exchange Project
Attendance at the exhibition opening of “Divergence” in 
Bangkok $1,000 

Ms Michele Theunissen
Installation work at the Performance Space in Sydney
 $600 

Ms Penelope Thomson
Secondment as Assistant Designer on Graeme Murphy’s 
Tivoli co-production between Sydney Dance Company and 
The Australian Ballet $800 

Mr Paul Uhlmann
Attendance of curator and artist at the exhibition “Absence” 
at the Drill Hall Gallery in Canberra $1,000 

Mr Trevor Vickers
Survey of an exhibition of work at the Charles Nodrun 
Gallery in Melbourne $600 

WA Fringe Festival
Presentation of Ingle Knight’s “The Getaway Bus” at the 
Edinburgh Fringe Festival $1,500 

WA Music Industry Association Inc
Attendance of the President and Executive Director at the 
Pacic Circle Music Expo 2000 in Sydney $1,200 

Ms Carolyn Wadley Dowley
Promotion of the client’s book “Through Silent Country” at 
a Conference in Europe $1,500 

Wadumbah Dance Group
A performance and promotional tour to Europe $2,000 

West Australian Ballet Company
Meetings with producers and venue managers in England, 
USA, Canada and Singapore to develop international 
touring for the WA Ballet Company $1,500 

West Australian Opera Company
Promotional and fact-nding tour to Europe by a senior 
representative of the West Australian Opera Company
 $1,500 

Ms Lou Westbury
Attendance at the Youth Performing Arts Australia Board 
Meeting in Melbourne  $655 

Ms Jane Whiteley
Attendance at a solo exhibition entitled “From Within” at the 
Tamworth City Gallery, NSW $830 

Ms Tess Williams
Attendance at the ‘Taking Nature Seriously’ conference 
in Oregon to present a paper and promote latest novel
 $1,500 

Mrs Gosia Wlodarczak-Sarnecka 
Travel to Sydney for the 2001 Roche Contemporary Art 
Prize and the Print Australia meeting $600 

Total Artight $127,954

PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVES

Albany Aboriginal Corporation
Centenary of Federation celebrations in Albany, April 2001
 $3,000 

Art On The Move
Assistance for the organisation to access additional 
premises in order to meet contractual requirements $7,000 
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Artists’ Foundation of WA
Attendance of the Executive Director at the Sixth 
International Conference on Arts and Cultural 
Management $1,000 
Enhancement of ArtSource’s advocacy and industry 
development role $20,000 
Marketing assistance for the strategic development and 
growth of the Artists’ Foundation of WA $80,000 
Attendance by the Executive Director at the Australian 
Institute of Arts Management Conference $825 

Arts Law Centre of Australia
Annual program of activities, 2001 $5,000 

Arts Management Group of WA
Professional development seminar in relation to the GST
 $800 

Association of Western Australian Art 
Galleries

Contribution towards the costs of producing the Western 
Australian Art Fair in 2001 $30,000 

Australian Dance Council
Facilitation of a dance summit in partnership with national 
dance organisations $3,850 

Black Swan Theatre Company
Performances by the Black Swan Theatre Company at 
the Australian Universities International Alumni Convention, 
Kuching, Malaysia $4,000 

Blue Moon Film & Video
Editing of an arts promotional video for Australia Day 2001
 $1,800 

Buzz Dance Theatre Limited
Public forum about Merce Cunningham during the 2001 
Perth International Arts Festival $1,000 

Central Metropolitan College of TAFE
Visit of Hans Gulberg to the Centennial Exhibition at PICA
 $1,677 

Community Arts Network WA Inc
Attendance by Pilar Kasat at a two-day seminar presented 
by the Australian Business and Arts Foundation $700 
Reconciliation and the Arts Working Group information 
workshops  $10,000 

Cultural Pursuits Australia Pty Ltd
Evaluation of the Arts Venture Capital program $5,421 

Effie Crump Theatre
Investment in the organisation’s succession plan for the 
position of Artistic Director $5,000 

Festival Fringe Society of Perth
An investment in the young people and the arts initiatives 
for Artrage $100,000 

Goolarri Media Enterprises Pty Ltd
Establishment of a national indigenous visual arts award
 $100,000 

Kulcha Multicultural Arts Centre of WA Attendance of 
Walter Gomes at a two-day seminar presented by the 
Australian Business and Arts Foundation $700 
Kulcha Multicultural Arts Centre of WA Investment in the 
multi-cultural Arts Ofcer’s Position  $70,000 

Miss Sheng Fang Liang
Negotiations for the production of the Swerve event 
scheduled for the Shanghai International Arts Festival 
 $1,500 

Music Managers’ Forum (Aust)
Assistance for young and emerging band members to 
participate in a professional development course at the 
Pacic Circle Music Expo, Sydney $5,000 

Nova Ensemble Incorporated
Contribution to administration costs of The Gilgamesh 
Project to enable funding to be secured for ‘jakart@2001
 $5,000 

Office of Aboriginal Economic Development
Arts workshop to develop local and international markets 
for indigenous cultural enterprises $10,000 

Office of Aboriginal Economic Development
Investment in the WA Indigenous Business Awards - 
Cultural Industry Award $8,000 

PEEDAC Pty Ltd
Investment in the NAIDOC Concert and Expo, July 2000
 $2,000 

Pen & Paint Pty Ltd
Establishment of a residential fellowship for a graduating 
student in ne art $10,000 

Performing Arts Centre Society Inc
Assistance towards the costs of managing the Rechabites 
Hall $53,500 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts
Contribution towards costs of night security at PICA
 $22,958
Contribution towards the PICA Strategic Planning Day
 $1,200 
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Swan Valley Tourism Council
Contribution to Spring in the Valley 2000 Festival artwork
 $2,500 

WA Arts Sport & Recreation Industry 
Training Council Inc

Provision of services - arts industry training needs analysis
 $10,000 

WA Music Industry Association Inc
Contribution towards costs of employing a Sponsorship 
Ofcer $15,000 
Rental assistance $16,800 

West Australian Symphony Orchestra
Introduction of a performance and development review 
program at WASO  $6,688 

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre
Rental of theatre premises at 65 Murray Street $33,900 

Total Partnership Initiatives $315,319

ARTS VENTURE CAPITAL

Scarab Wood Design
Limited edition production of ne West Australian 
woodcraft items $9,905 

Scrap Metal Pty Ltd
Recording, promotion and marketing of a new CD by the 
Pigram Brothers $50,000 

Total Arts Venture Capital $59,905

MULTI-YEAR FUNDING

Australian Writers Guild (WA)
Annual Program of Activities $15,000 

Children’s Book Council Of Australia (WA 
Branch) Inc.

Annual Program of Activities $15,000 

Disability in the Arts, Disadvantage in the 
Arts Australia

Annual Program of Activities $40,000 

Effie Crump Theatre
Annual Program of Activities  $50,000 

Fremantle Children’s Literature Centre
Annual Program of Activities $17,500 

Fremantle Children’s Literature Centre
Annual Program of Activities $17,500 

Jazz Co-ordination Association of W.A.
Annual Program of Activities $12,000 

Musica Viva Australia
Annual Program of Activities $15,000 

Performing Arts Centre Society Inc
Annual Program of Activities  $35,000 

Perth Jazz Society
Annual Program of Activities $15,000 

Skadada
Annual Program of Activities $30,000 

Southern Edge Arts
Annual Program of Activities $35,000 

STEPS, Youth Dance Company
Annual Program of Activities  $50,000 

Tura Events Co Ltd
Annual Program of Activities $40,000 

WA Playwrights’ Consortium Inc.
Annual Program of Activities  $45,000 

WA State Literature Officer Inc.
Annual Program of Activities $24,000 

West Australian Youth Jazz Orchestra
Annual Program of Activities $20,000 

Total Multi-Year Funded Organisations  $476,000

GLOBAL RESIDENCIES and EXPORT 
PROGRAMS

City of Melville
Participation of Anne Farren in an international visual 
arts residency in association with an exhibition (Auspiced 
grant) $5,400 

Ms Rebecca Davis
Participation of Rebecca Davis and Stuart Halusz in an 
acting fellowship at the Shakespeare Globe Theatre in 
London $3,000 

Ms Rakini Devi
Residency in Brussels with the Nachtschimmen Company
 $5,000 
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WA School of Visual Arts, Edith Cowan 
University

India/WA exchange program – A residency by New Delhi 
artist S Pareet at ECU and the Artists’ Foundation of 
AFWA $2,400 

Arts Projects Australia
An International Tour of “Cloudstreet” $10,000 

AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd
Attendance of the Director at the 2000 IKSAN international 
performing arts festival in Korea $1,146 

Mr John Butler
A solo international tour August, including a major festival 
in Holland and other events in the United Kingdom $2,500 

Buzz Dance Theatre Limited
Performances and masterclasses by invitation in Durban, 
South Africa $17,185 

Cartman Music
A nine-day promotional tour of the Eastern States $5,000 

Country Womens Association
An exhibition of contemporary works by Australian women 
artists $4,500 

Halogen
A promotional and performance tour to the Eastern States
 $5,000 

Ms Wendy Lugg
Attendance at a textile exhibition in Japan curated by 
Wendy Lugg and Sue Leighton-White $5,000 

Mowanjum Artists Spirit of the Wandjina 
Aboriginal Corporation

Showcasing of regional traditional art at an Australian 
Aboriginal cultural promotion in Slovenia, Eastern Europe
 $5,000 

Otis Elevonic
Four week tour of the United Kingdom showcasing and 
marketing a new album $5,000 

Perth Theatre Company
Tour “Face to Face” at the Cultura Inglesa Festival, Brazil
 $20,000 

Swerve Association Inc.
Performances at Shanghai International Arts Festival
 $17,815 

Mr Neil Erasmus
Participation in an international box exhibition in the United 
Kingdom $2,100 

Mr Paul Gazzola
Performances at Tanzzeit Festival, Berlin and production 
of a promotional video $5,000 

Mr David Hyams
Participation in the Boite Winter Festival of World Music, 
Victoria $5,000 

Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency
Production of a book to be launched at Mangkaja Arts 
Tenth Anniversary Exhibition in Adelaide $4,800 

Mr Jimmy Pike
Participation in an art exhibition in London, UK $4,992 

Mr Malcolm Riddoch
A collaborative installation at the Squat Space Gallery
 $4,975 

International Art Space Kellerberrin
Travel to Europe and Singapore to establish a series 
of residency exchanges between IASKA & similar 
organisations $3,300 

Ms Maria Madeira
Research in East Timor towards development of 
exhibitions in WA $2,500 

Nova Ensemble Incorporated
A residency with Warogus musicians in Indonesia as a 
component of a tour which includes performances for the 
Jakarta 2001 festival $10,000 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts
Contribution towards costs of the visiting exhibition ‘Very 
Fun Park” $2,500 

Perth Theatre Company
A four week residency in Croatia  $4,200 

WA Music Industry Association Inc
Research in contemporary music policies and programs 
in Europe towards Development of cultural exchanges 
 $3,000 

Total Global Residencies and Export Programs
 $166,313

CAFÉ CULTURE

City of Armadale
Musical performances in the Jull Street Mall, Armadale
 $3,900 
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City of Joondalup
Live music concerts in the Joondalup café district on Reid 
Promenade $6,220 

City of Mandurah
Live jazz performances in hospitality venues as an 
extension of the Touch The Sun festival $5,000 

City of Melville
Artists’ performances as part of the Festival of Melville
 $2,000 

City of Rockingham
An extension of the festival weekend music program
 $7,500 

City of Stirling
Live performances as part of the Beaufort Street Festival
 $9,000 

City of Swan
Musical performances in the historic precinct of Guildford
 $2,850 

Shire of Broome
Across artform performances in cafés and public venues 
in Broome $9,100 

Shire of Murray
Musical performances for the local community $5,890 

Total Café Culture Projects  $51,460

ARTS AGENCIES

Art On The Move
General Purpose Funding  $188,000 

Artists’ Foundation of WA
General Purpose Funding  $215,000 

Australian Dance Council
General Purpose Funding $107,500

Barking Gecko Theatre Company
Incentive funding $79,877 
General Purpose Funding  $280,000 

Black Swan Theatre Company
General Purpose funding $431,512 
Incentive Funding  $15,000 

Buzz Dance Theatre Limited
General Purpose Funding  $186,000 

Community Arts Network WA Inc
General Purpose and Devolved Funding $467,500

Country Arts (WA) Inc
General Purpose and Devolved Funding  $910,000
Management of Federal Regional Arts funding $375,000 

Craftwest Centre for Contemporary Craft Inc
General Purpose Funding  $330,000 

Deckchair Theatre Inc
General Purpose Funding  $182,500 
Incentive Funding  $39,135 

Festival Fringe Society of Perth
General Purpose Funding  $178,000 

Fremantle Arts Centre
General Purpose Funding  $554,500

Fremantle Arts Centre Press
General Purpose Funding $215,000

Kulcha Multicultural Arts Centre of WA
General Purpose Funding  $104,000 

Magabala Books Aboriginal Corporation
General Purpose Funding  $142,500 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts
General Purpose Funding  $347,000

Perth Theatre Company
General Purpose Funding  $340,000
Incentive Funding  $75,414 

Spare Parts Theatre (Inc.)
General Purpose Funding  $220,000 
Incentive Funding  $9,840 

West Australian Ballet Company
General Purpose Funding  $1,353,165 

West Australian Opera Company
General Purpose Funding $775,988

West Australian Symphony Orchestra
General Purpose Funding  $1,332,978 

Western Australian Youth Orchestra 
Association (Inc)

General Purpose Funding  $101,000

Yirra Yaakin Noongar Theatre
General Purpose Funding  $117,500

Total Arts Agencies $10,048,928

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDING $13,137,208
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To the Parliament of Western Australia

MINISTRY FOR CULTURE AND THE ARTS
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Scope

I have audited the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the Ministry 
for Culture and the Arts for the year ended June 30, 2001 under the provisions of the 
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

The Director General is responsible for developing and maintaining proper records and systems for preparing 
and presenting performance indicators.  I have conducted an audit of the key performance indicators in order to 
express an opinion on them to the parliament as required by the Act.  No opinion is expressed on the output 
measures of quantity, quality, timeliness and cost.

My audit was performed in accordance with section 79 of the Act to form an opinion based on a reasonable 
level of assurance.  The audit procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and other disclosures in the performance indicators, and assessing the relevance and appropriateness of the 
performance indicators in assisting users to assess the Ministry’s performance.  These procedures have been 
undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the performance indicators are relevant and 
appropriate having regard to their purpose and fairly represent the indicated performance.

The audit opinion expressed below has been formed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion

In my opinion, the key effectiveness and efciency performance indicators of the Ministry for Culture and the 
Arts are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Ministry’s performance and fairly represent the 
indicated performance for the year ended June 30, 2001.

D D R PEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
October 3, 2001
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The performance indicators for the Ministry for Culture & the Arts are based 
on proper records and fairly represented performance of the Ministry for the 
financial year 2000-2001.

ALASTAIR BRYANT
DIRECTOR GENERAL
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KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS – 2000/2001

Outcome - A community that is informed 
of, and has access to, a diverse 
range of innovative ideas, knowledge and 
cultural experiences.

Description:

This outcome preserves and provides access to 
Western Australia’s natural and social heritage, 
supports our artistic development and provides 
a link to information and culture nationally and 
internationally. This outcome is provided by the 
Ministry for Culture & the Arts, the Art Gallery 
of Western Australia, The Library and Information 
Service of Western Australia, the Perth Theatre Trust, 
ScreenWest Inc and the Western Australian Museum.

Introduction:

Performance Indicators are required under the 
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and 
must be relevant, veriable, free from bias and 
quantiable. The Ministry for Culture & the Arts and 
the statutory authorities associated with it receive 
their annual appropriation from the Parliament for the 
purpose of a single outcome and all of the activities 
are organised into six output groups. 

The Department’s 6 Outputs are:

Output 1: Art Gallery services.
Description: Delivery of the State Art collection 
 and access to art gallery services 
 and programs through visual arts 
 advocacy, collection development, 
 facilities and services. Services 
 ensure that primary access to art, 
 heritage and ideas locally, regionally 
 and internationally are preserved 
 and displayed for future generations.

Output 2 Library, archival and information 
 services.  
Description: Delivery of library, archival and 
 information services through the 
 Internet, the Alexander Library
 Building and the Public Library 
 system. Support Local Authorities 
 and associated bodies with 
 leadership, resources, information 
 and other services. Services ensure 
 that Western Australia’s 
 documentary heritage is collected, 
 organised and preserved for access 
 by future generations.

Output 3 Museum services.
Description: Delivery and promotion of museum 
 services through collection 
 development and management, 
 research, education and visitor 
 services.

Output 4: Arts industry support.
Description: Funding, development and 
 promotion of the arts.

Output 5 Screen production industry support.
Description: Delivery of strategic support and 
 funding to advance the development 
 of the screen production industry in 
 Western Australia.

Output 6 Venue management services.
Description: Management and promotion of 
 performing arts venues.

The Art Gallery of Western Australia, the Perth 
Theatre Trust, ScreenWest, The Library Board 
of Western Australia and the Western Australia 
Museum produce their own key effectiveness and 
efciency performance indicators and publish them 
in their respective annual reports. This report and 
these performance indicators relate only to the 
ArtsWA division of the Department under output four. 
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Effectiveness Indicators (2000/2001)

These performance indicators address the 
effectiveness with which the Ministry for Culture & 
the Arts undertakes work associated in achieving 
its Outcome as approved by the Government. The 
performance indicators have been improved from 
last year in order to better reect the achievement of 
the Outcome statement.

1.  Relationship with Community and Measure of 
Diversity in the Arts.

Rationale 

The grants program administered by ArtsWA 
is communicated to the community through, 
newspaper advertising (three times a year), 
interaction with industry representatives on various 
grant assessment panels and through the direct 
contact of the project ofcers with members of the 
community. In addition to this community related 
proposals (eg applications under the Aboriginal Arts 
program) require the applicant to have consulted the 
community and industry. 

All submitted projects are assessed by a panel 
of artistic peers who access whether the projects 
are relevant, indicate quality, have good supporting 
information, have industry and community support 
(where required) and are artistically and nancially 
viable. ArtsWA has successfully improved the 
standard of applications by working effectively with 
prospective applicants in ensuring that the project 
submissions meet the assessment criteria.

The graph below shows the diverse range of 
arts projects that are made possible by funding 
through ArtsWA. Funded projects are undertaken 
by both professional artists, arts organisations and 
by community groups. The measure of diversity is 
subject to applications being received, assessed and 
succeeding in the nine categories shown in the 
table below. The rst six categories relate to artform 
areas in which each artform covers the full range of 
practices within that artform. For example, the music 
artform category covers all types of music genres 
from contemporary to classical music. The Multi- 
Arts category encompasses projects that cross and 
join two or more artforms.
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The latter three categories have been specically 
designed to attract diversity with particular focus 
on Young people and the Arts, Aboriginal Arts and 
Creative Development for individual artists across all 
artforms.

The table above indicated that ve of the nine 
artforms had an increase in the number of 
successful applications from the previous year. The 
increase in music (mainly contemporary music) and 
in Young People and the Arts is a result of strategic 
program initiatives and the effective work of ArtsWA 
project ofcers.

Efficiency Indicators (2000/01)

This performance measure address the efciency 
with which the Ministry for Culture & the Arts, 
through ArtsWA, undertakes work associated in 
achieving Output 4 Arts Industry Support.

1.Cost

 Actual Target  Actual
 1999/00 2000/01 2000/01

Cost per arts 
project and 
organisation 
supported $39,101 $32,223 $46,043

Cost per 
industry 
development 
initiative $32,158 $25,007 $27,071

Note: The increase in 2000/01 is mainly due 
to increased funding provided to implement the 
recommendations of the Major Performing Arts Inquiry 
Final Report: Securing the Future (1999), additional 
Lotteries funding and the increase in outstanding grants 
of $ 3,407,000.
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Output Based Management - Performance Measures

OUTPUT BASED MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
2000-2001

Introduction:

A summary of the Output Based Management (OBM) measures is reported here 
for the Ministry for Culture & the Arts and the agencies in the portfolio as 
they appear in the 2000-2001 Budget Statements. The performance measure listed 
below are not audited.

Outcome - A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge 
and cultural experiences.

Description:

This outcome preserves and provides access to Western Australia’s natural and social heritage, supports our 
artistic development and provides a link to information and culture nationally and internationally. This outcome is 
provided by the Ministry for Culture & the Arts , the Art Gallery of Western Australia, The Library and Information 
Service of Western Australia, the Perth Theatre Trust, ScreenWest and the Western Australian Museum.

Output 1: Art Gallery Services 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Interactions (visitors, internet hits, 
enquiries and exchanges) 405 643 396 000 443 747 450 000

Items maintained which support 
WA’s collection management 15 002 15 130 15 343 15 473

Quality    

Adherence to collection policy for acquisition  100% 100% 100% 
100%

Visitor satisfaction rate*   91% 91%

Timeliness    
Hours per week public has access to collections 49 49 49 49

Cost    

Cost per interaction $30.69 $34.08 $29.79 $30.61

Cost per item in the collection $207.43 $223.01 $215.37 $222.53

* A new measure for 2000-01
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Output 2: Library, Archival and 
Information Services 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Information Interactions 3 374 975 3 500 000 3 615 944 3 650 000

New items added to the collections 378 797 374 000 323 609 350 000

Quality    

Client satisfaction with services 89% 91% 90% 90%

% collections covered by collection development policies 99% 99% 100% 100%

Timeliness    

Hours per week public has access to collections 74.5 74.5 74.5 67.5

Time taken from order to dispatch (public library collections) 118 days 130 days 133 days 125 days

Cost    

Information Interactions $7.46 $7.61 $6.89 $5.97

New items added to the collections $28.47 $27.69 $34.60 $41.50

Output 3: Museum Services 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Interactions (visitors, Internet hits, 
enquiries and exchanges) 1 106 147 1 200 000 1 208 018 1 200 000

Items maintained, which support WA’s 
collection management 2 431 254 2 920 000 2 482 652 2 500 000

Quality    

Satisfaction rate - products 97% 97% 95% 97%

Collections stored according to appropriate standards 5% 5% 5% 5%

Adherence to collection policy for acquisition 100% 100% 100% 100%

Satisfaction rate - interactions 97% 97% 99% 97%

Timeliness    

Hours per week public has access to collections:    

- Perth Museum 49 52 49 52

- Fremantle History Museum 40 40 40 40

- Maritime Museum 46 52 46 52

Length of time from decision on collection to time of use 33 days 33 days 33 days 33 days

Cost    

Average cost per interaction $9.13 $9.41 $8.97 $9.83

Average cost per item in the collection $3.38 $3.16 $3.57 $3.86
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Output 4: Arts Industry Support 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Arts projects and organisations supported 375 447 395 455

Industry development initiatives 19 24 28 25

Grants applications processed*   711 800

Industry interactions (internet hits, 
meetings and consultation)*   11 463 11 300

Quality    

% of industry development contracts met*   80% 80%

% of industry meetings and events represented*   70% 70%

% of grant contract met 68% 94% 66% 80%

% of grant applications processed 100% 100% 100% 100%

Client satisfaction with services 90% 90% 86% 75%

Timeliness    

Days between processing of 
grant application and notication of outcome 73 days 68 days 61 days 75 days

Percentage of grant payments made within 
28 days of receipt of signed contract*   100% 100%

Hours that the public has access to 
advisory and development services 40 hours 40 hours 40 hours 40 hours

Cost    

Average cost per project and 
organisation supported $39 106.56 $32 227.65 $42 690.71 $45 992.46

Average cost per industry 
development initiative $32 160.00 $25 010.00 $13 533.57 $18 810.40

Average cost of grant application processed*   $266.48 $293.91

Average cost per industry interaction*   $132.23 $166.46

* A new measure for 2000-01
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Output 5: Screen Production
Industry Support 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Number of applications funded*   199 200

Number of website interactions with the industry*   65 500 255 000a

Number of funding applications received*   488 500

Number of inward visits to WA by buyers/producers and 
advice provided*   100 110

Quality    

Percentage of appeals per number of application*   5% 5%

Customer satisfaction with business development 
service provided**    60%

Customer satisfaction with website service**    60%

Timeliness    

Time between receipt of business development 
inquiry and reply*   3 days 3 days

Number of website updates provided on time*   3 6

Time between acceptance of application and 
notication of outcome 21 days 30 days 28 days 30 days

Cost    

Average cost per visit/advice*   $956.00 $996.91

Average cost per website interaction*   $0.73 $0.22

Average cost per funded project*   $19 936.68 $22 754.45

Average cost per application received*   $1 371.31 $1 535.24

* A new measure for 2000-01. 
** A new measure for 2001-02
a Increased target due to increased newsletter circulation and marketing of web site.

Output 6: Venue Management
Services 1999-00 2000-01 2000-01 2001-02
 Actual Target Actual Target

Quantity    

Performances 645 700 587 646

Quality    

Hirer satisfaction with services provided   75% 80%

Timeliness    

Days between the conrmation of booking and 
the despatch of contract 14 days 14 days 14 days 14 days

Cost    

Average cost per performance $17 017.05 $10 860.00 $20 654.17 $18 631.58
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Financials - Auditor General's Opinion

To the Parliament of Western Australia

MINISTRY FOR CULTURE AND THE ARTS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

Scope

I have audited the accounts and nancial statements of the Ministry for Culture and the Arts for the year ended 
June 30, 2001 under the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate systems of internal 
control, preparing and presenting the nancial statements, and complying with the Act and other relevant written 
law.  The primary responsibility for the detection, investigation and prevention of irregularities rests with the 
Director General.

My audit was performed in accordance with section 79 of the Act to form an opinion based on a reasonable 
level of assurance.  The audit procedures included examining, on a test basis, the controls exercised by the 
Ministry to ensure nancial regularity in accordance with legislative provisions, evidence to provide reasonable 
assurance that the amounts and other disclosures in the nancial statements are free of material misstatement 
and the evaluation of accounting policies and signicant accounting estimates.  These procedures have been 
undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the nancial statements are presented 
fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions so as to present a view which is consistent with my understanding of the Ministry’s 
nancial position, the results of its operations and its cash ows.

The audit opinion expressed below has been formed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion

In my opinion,

(i) The controls exercised by the Ministry for Culture and the Arts provide reasonable assurance that the 
receipt and expenditure of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of property and the incurring of 
liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and

(ii) The Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows, 
Output Schedule of Expenses and Revenues and Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and 
Revenue Estimates and the Notes to and forming part of the nancial statements are based on proper 
accounts and present fairly in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements and the Treasurer’s Instructions, the nancial position of the Ministry at 
June 30, 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash ows for the year then ended.

D D R PEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
October 3, 2001
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Certification of Accounts

MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 
2001

The accompanying financial statements of the Ministry for Culture & the Arts have 
been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial 
transactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2001 and the financial position 
as at 30 June 2001.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

ALASTAIR BRYANT
DIRECTOR GENERAL
15 August 2001

ROSS PALMER
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER
15 August 2001
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MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2001

  Note 2001 2000
   $000 $000

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses from ordinary activities

Employee expenses 4 26,449  26,886 

Depreciation expense 6 480  539 

Supplies and services 5 1,422  1,140 

Administration expenses 7 399  391 

Accommodation expenses 8 827  512 

Borrowing cost expense  113  0 

Grants & subsidies 9 17,759  14,309 

Bad and doubtful debts  58  0 

Appropriation transferred 10 27,544  26,104 

Other expenses from ordinary activities  24  110 

Total cost of services  75,075  69,991 

Revenues from ordinary activities

 User charges and fees  630  579

 Grants and subsidies  744  429

 Other revenues from ordinary activities  183  133

Total revenues from ordinary activities 11 1,557  1,141 

NET COST OF SERVICES 19 73,518  68,850 

REVENUES FROM GOVERNMENT

 Appropriations  69,706  66,072 

 Resources received free of charge  85  20 

 Liabitility Assumed by Treasurer  1,444  2,600 

Total revenues from Government 12 71,235  68,692 

Change in net assets resulting from operations  (2,283) (158)

Net increase in Asset Revaluation Reserve  586  410 

Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments    
recognised directly in equity  586  410 

TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN    
THOSE RESULTING FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH 
OWNERS AS OWNERS  (1,697) 252 

This Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2001

  Note 2001 2000
   $000 $000

Current Assets 

Cash assets 13 2,872 1,413

Receivables 14 1,221 1,142

Prepayments  28 29

Total Current Assets  4,121 2,584

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 15 12,195 11,750

Total Non-Current Assets  12,195 11,750

Total Assets  16,316 14,334

Current Liabilities

Payables  98 84

Accrued Salaries  601 536

Provisions 16 3,856 2,958

Grants Payable 17 12,160 8,753

Total Current Liabilities  16,715 12,331

Non Current Liabilities

Provisions 16 1,474 2,179

Total Liabilities  18,189 14,510

Equity

Accumulated Surplus/(Decit)  (3,250) (967)

Reserve  1,377 791

Total Equity 18 (1,873) (176)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  16,316 14,334

This Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2001

  Note 2001 2000
   $000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM GOVERNMENT   

Recurrent appropriations  66,148 39,059

Capital appropriations  4,243 830

Net cash provided by Government  70,391 39,889

 Utilised as follows:   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Payments   

Employee costs  (24,685) (23,994)

Supplies and services  (1,270) (1,139)

Borrowing Costs  (113) (0)

Administration  (396) (406)

Accommodation  (824) (532)

Grants and subsidies  (14,427) (14,973)

Appropriation transferred  (28,144) 0

GST payments on purchases  (109) (110)

Receipts   

User charges and fees  626 537

Grants and Subsidies  693 406

Other receipts  54 61

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 19  (68,595)  (40,149)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (337) (281)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities   (337)  (281)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  1,459 (541)

Cash assets at the beginning of the nancial year   1,413  1,954

CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 13  2,872  1,413

The Statement of Cash Flows should be  read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements

MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE ESTIMATES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

  2001 2001 Variance  2000 2000 Variance 

  Estimate Actual Over/ (Under) Estimate Actual Over/ (Under)

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

RECURRENT

Amount required to fund outputs for the year 37,102 38,622 1,520 30,812 30,196 (616)

Less retained revenue – Section 23A Financial 

Administration and Audit Act (6,432) (6,432) 0 (300) (300) 0

Item 107 - Amount provided to fund outputs for 

the year 30,670 32,190 1,520 30,512 29,896 (616)

Item 108 Art Gallery of WA 3,354 3,350 (4) 3,478 3,478 0

Item 109 Library Board of WA 13,912 14,450 538 13,572 14,288 716

Item 110 Perth Theatre Trust 1,877 2,480 603 1,263 1,263 0

Item 111 Western Australian Museum 3,107 3,604 497 2,168 2,928 760

Amount authorised by other Statutes

- Lotteries Commission Act 1990 8,400 8,984 584 8,300 8,685 385

- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 490 490 0 478 478 0

Sub-total 61,810 65,548 3,738 59,771 61,016 1,245

Item 112 - Administered grants and transfer 

payments 600 600 0 600 600 0

Total Recurrent Services 62,410 66,148 3,738 60,371 61,616 1,245

CAPITAL

Item 184 - Amount provided for capital services 

for the year 583 583 0 1,130 830 (300)

Item 185 Art Gallery of WA 400 400 0 210 210 0

Item 186 Library Board of WA 400 400 0 700 700 0

Item 187 Perth Theatre Trust 1,250 1,250 0 1,855 1,555 (300)

Item 188 Western Australian Museum 1,610 1,610 0 885 1,682 797

Total Capital Services 4,243 4,243 0 4,780 4,977 197

GRAND TOTAL 66,653 70,391 3,738 65,151 66,593 1,442
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MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND REVENUE ESTIMATES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

  2001 2001 Variance  2000 2000 Variance 

  Estimate Actual Over/ (Under) Estimate Actual Over/ (Under)

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE

Recurrent

Outputs:

Art Gallery Services 6,432 6,428 -4 6,356 6,356 0

Library, Archival and Information Services 25,629 25,617 -12 25,455 25,455 0

Museum Services 11,240 11,738 498 9,479 9,889 410

Arts Industry Support 13,921 16,461 2,540 13,916 14,301 385

Screen Production Industry Support 1,525 1,638 113 1,518 1,968 450

Venue Management Services 3,063 3,666 603 3,047 3,047 0

Administered Transactions 600 600 0 600 600 0

Total Recurrent Services 62,410 66,148 3,738 60,371 61,616 1,245

Capital

Capital expenditure 4,243 4,243 0 4,780 4,977 -197

Total Capital Services 4,243 4,243 0 4,780 4,977 -197

Grand Total of Appropriations 66,653 70,391 3,738 65,151 66,593 1,048

DETAILS OF REVENUE ESTIMATES

Revenues disclosed as Operating Revenues 8,400 8,984 584 8,300 8,685 385

Total Revenue Estimates 8,400 8,984 584 8,300 8,685 385

Notes
Explanations of variations between the current year estimates and actual results and actual results for this year and the 
immediately preceding year are set out in Note 23
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MINISTRY FOR CULTURE & THE ARTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

1. Ministry mission, funding and name

The Ministry’s mission is to provide leadership, support and services to ensure that current and future 
Western Australians are informed and have access to a diverse range of innovative ideas, knowledge 
and cultural experiences.

The Ministry is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriations. The nancial statements 
encompass all funds through which the Ministry controls resources to carry out its functions.

In the process of reporting on the Ministry as a single entity, all intra-entity transactions and balances 
have been eliminated.

As of 1 July 2001, the Ministry for Culture & the Arts was renamed the Department of Culture and the Arts, 
as part of the new Government’s “Machinery of Government” strategy.

2. Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the nancial statements. Unless 
otherwise stated these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous year.

General Statement

The nancial statements constitute a general purpose nancial report which has been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views as 
applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modied by the Treasurer’s Instructions to 
vary application, disclosure, format and wording. The Financial Administration and Audit Act and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of nancial statements and 
take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards and UIG Consensus Views. The modications are 
intended to full the requirements of general application to the public sector together with the need for 
greater disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements. 

If any such modication has a material or signicant nancial effect upon the reported results, details of 
that modication and where practicable, the resulting nancial effect, are disclosed in individual notes to 
these nancial statements.

Basis of accounting 

The nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AAS 29. 

The statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, 
with the exception of certain non-current assets which have been introduced at written down current cost 
as at 30 June 2000. Additions to non-current assets since valuation are stated at cost.

The value of land and improvements in excess of their known original cost have been credited to an 
asset revaluation reserve.

The totals of user charges (being fees for services rendered by the Ministry that are not regulatory in 
nature), recoups, reimbursements and proceeds from the sale of assets controlled by Ministry are included 
as operating revenues of the Ministry.
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Administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues are not integral to the Ministry in carrying out its 
functions and are disclosed in the notes to the nancial statements, forming part of the general purpose 
nancial report of the Ministry. The administered items are disclosed on the same basis as is described 
above for the nancial statements of the Ministry.

The administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues are those which the Government requires the 
Ministry to administer on its behalf. The assets do not render any service potential or future economic 
benets to the Ministry, the liabilities do not require the future sacrice of service potential or future 
economic benets of the Ministry, and the expenses and revenues are not attributable to the Ministry.

As the administered assets, liabilities, expenses and revenues are not recognised in the principal nancial 
statements of the Ministry, the disclosure requirements of Australian Accounting Standard AAS 33, 
Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments, are not applied to administered transactions.

(a) Appropriations

Appropriations in the nature of revenue, whether recurrent or capital, are recognised as revenues in 
the period in which the Ministry gains control of the appropriated funds. The Ministry gains control of 
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited into the Ministry’s operating account. 

The Ministry receives funding from the Lotteries Commission under the provisions of Section 22 of the 
Lotteries Commission Act (1990). This provides for receipts based on two per cent of the incomes received 
by the Lotteries Commission in respect of lotteries and games of Lotto conducted by it. Accordingly, 
funds are received in arrears, and at 30 June the portion relating to lotteries turnover for June remained 
outstanding.  This amount is recognised as an asset in the Statement of Financial Position, and as 
Appropriations in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Operating account

Amounts appropriated are deposited into the account and any revenues which are the subject of 
net appropriation determinations are also deposited into the account. Revenues not subject to net 
appropriation determinations are credited to the Consolidated Fund. All payments of the Ministry are made 
from the operating account.

(b) Net Appropriation Determination

Pursuant to Section 23A of the Financial Administration and Audit Act, the net appropriation determination 
by the Treasurer provides for retention of the following moneys received by the Ministry:

• Proceeds from fees and charges; and

• Proceeds from training courses provided.

Retained revenues may only be applied to the outputs specied in the 2000-2001 Budget Statements.

Details of retained revenues are disclosed in the Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and 
Revenue Estimates.
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(c) Grants

Grants are recognised as revenue when the Ministry obtains control over the assets comprising the 
contributions. Control is normally obtained upon their receipt.

(d) Depreciation of non-current assets

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a 
manner that reects the consumption of their future economic benets.

Depreciation is provided for on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. Major 
depreciation periods are:

Buildings/Improvements  40 years
Plant and equipment  4 years
Computer hardware and software 4 years

Works of art controlled by the Ministry are classied as heritage assets. They are anticipated to have 
very long and indeterminate useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been 
consumed during the reporting period. As such, no amount for depreciation has been recognised in 
respect of them.

(e) Employee entitlements

Annual and long service leave

These entitlements are recognised at current remuneration rates and are measured at the amount unpaid 
at the reporting date in respect to employees’ service up to that date.

A liability for long service leave is recognised after an ofcer has completed four years of service. An 
actuarial assessment of long service leave was carried out at 30 June 1999. For 2000/2001, the short 
hand method was adopted to calculate the liability for long service leave.

This method of measurement of the liability is consistent with the requirements of Australian Accounting 
Standard AAS 30 “Accounting for Employee Entitlements”.

Superannuation

Staff may contribute to the Superannuation and Family Benets Act Scheme, a dened benets pension 
scheme now closed to new members, or to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a dened benet 
lump sum scheme now also closed to new members. All staff who do not contribute to either of these 
schemes become non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation 
fund complying with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 
1992.

The superannuation expense comprises:

(i) notional employer contributions that would have been paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme 
and West State Superannuation Scheme if the Ministry had made concurrent employer contributions 
to those Schemes; and

(ii) change in the unfunded employer’s liability in respect of current employees who are members of the 
Superannuation and Family Benets Act Scheme and current employees who accrued a benet on 
transfer from that Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme.
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(f) Leases

The Ministry has operating lease arrangements for motor vehicles, through the Department of Industry 
and Technology, with LeasePlan, where the lessor effectively retains all of the risks and benets incident 
to ownership of the items held under the operating leases. Equal instalments of the lease payments are 
charged to the operating statement over the term of the lease as this is representative of the pattern of 
benets to be derived from the leased property.

(g) Receivables

Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 
days from the date of recognition.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable 
are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubts as to collection exists.

(h) Accrued Salaries

The accrued salaries suspense account consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a 
period of 10 nancial years to largely meet the additional cash outow in each eleventh year when 27 pay 
days occur in that year instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account.

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the nancial year, as the end 
of the last pay period for that nancial year does not coincide with the end of the nancial year. Accrued 
salaries are settled within a few days of the nancial year end. The Ministry considers the carrying amount 
of accrued salaries to be equivalent to the net fair value. 

(i) Payables

Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Ministry becomes obliged to make 
future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. Payables are generally settled within 
30 days.

(j) Resources Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Value

Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as 
revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

(k) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets and the rendering of services, is recognised 
when the Ministry has passed control of the goods or other assets or delivery of the service to the 
customer.

(l) Revaluation of Land, Buildings and Infrastructure

The Ministry has a policy of valuing land, buildings and infrastructure at fair value. The annual revaluations 
of the Ministry ‘s land and buildings undertaken by the Valuer General’s Ofce for the Government 
Property Register are recognised in the nancial statements. The transitional provisions in AAS 38 
(10.9)(b) have been applied to infrastructure assets. 
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(m) Comparative Figures

Comparative gures are, where appropriate, reclassied so as to be comparable with the gures presented 
in the current nancial year.

3. Outputs of the Ministry

Information about the Ministry’s outputs and the expenses and revenues which are reliably attributable 
to those outputs is set out in the Output Schedule. Information about expenses, revenues, assets and 
liabilities administered by the Ministry are given in the schedule of Administered Expenses and Revenues 
and the schedule of Administered Assets and Liabilities.

The Ministry’s Outcome and 6 Outputs are:

Outcome: A community that is informed of, and has access to, a diverse range of 
innovative ideas, knowledge and cultural experiences.

Output 1: Art Gallery services.

Description: Delivery of the State Art collection and access to art gallery services and programs through 
visual arts advocacy, collection development, facilities and services. Services ensure that 
primary access to art, heritage and ideas locally, regionally and internationally are preserved 
and displayed for future generations.

Output 2 Library, archival and information services.

Description: Delivery of library, archival and information services through the Internet, the Alexander Library 
Building and the Public Library system. Support Local Authorities and associated bodies with 
leadership, resources, information and other services. Services ensure that Western Australia’s 
documentary heritage is collected, organised and preserved for access by future generations.

Output 3 Museum services.

Description: Delivery and promotion of museum services through collection development and management, 
research, education and visitor services.

Output 4: Arts industry support.

Description: Development, funding and promotion of the arts industry.

Output 5 Screen production industry support.

Description: Delivery of strategic support and funding to advance the development of the screen production 
industry in Western Australia.

Output 6 Venue management services.

Description: Management and promotion of performing arts venues.
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 2001 2000 
 $000 $000

4. Employee expenses

Wages and salaries 24,609 23,809

Superannuation (notional expense 
– liability assumed by Treasurer) 1,444 2,600

Worker’s compensation premium 49 212

Employee entitlements 221 141

Other related expenses 126 124

 26,449 26,886

5. Supplies and Services

Consultants and contractors 524 324

Printing 119 122

Legal fees 7 99

Travel 109 77

Insurance 83 82

Electricity and gas 14 47

Other 566 389

 1,422 1,140

6. Depreciation expense

Buildings 179 205

Leasehold improvements 176 176

Plant, equipment, computer hardware and software 125 158

 480 539

7. Administration expenses

Communication 139 111

Maintenance 164 192

Consumables 53 61

Lease – equipment and vehicles 43 27

 399 391

8. Accommodation expenses

Rent 229 170

Repairs & maintenance 517 270

Facilities management and other accommodation 65 40

Cleaning 16 32

 827 512
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 2001 2000 

 $000 $000

9. Grants & subsidies

Recurrent  

Arts Agency & panels 16,886 13,079

Grant payment to ScreenWest 873 1,230

 17,759 14,309

10. Agencies Appropriation

Library Board of WA 14,850 14,988

Western Australian Museum 5,214 4,610

Art Gallery of WA 3,750 3,688

Perth Theatre Trust 3,730 2,818

 27,544 26,104

11. User charges, fees and Other Revenues

User fees and charges 630 594

Grants and subsidies 744 429

Other revenues from ordinary activities 183 118

 1,557 1,141

12. Revenues (to)/from Government

Appropriation revenue received during the year:

Recurrent 66,083 62,161

Capital 4,243 5,577

 70,326 67,738
Less Appropriation returned to Consolidated Fund (620) (1,666)

 69,706 66,072

The following liabilities have been assumed by the 
Treasurer during the nancial year:

- superannuation 1,444 2,600

Total liabilities assumed by the Treasurer 1,444 2,600

Resources received free of charge 
determined on the basis of the following 
estimates provided by agencies:  

Ofce of the Auditor General 
– audit services 25 20

Education Department of Western Australia 
– staff secondments 60 

 85 20

 71,235 68,692
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 2001 2000 
 $000 $000

13. Cash and amounts in suspense

Cash on hand 1 1

Accrued salaries suspense account (I) 179 64

Arts Lotteries trust account 1,565 446

Operating Account - controlled 1,127 902

 2,872 1,413

Operating Account - Administered 1,351 1,127

(I)  Amount held in suspense account is only 
to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27th 
pay in a nancial year that occurs every 11 years.

14. Receivables

Amount receivable from the Lotteries Commission 886 970

Trade debtors 141 172

Provision for doubtful debts (24) 0

GST receivable 218 0

 1,221 1,142

15. Property, plant, equipment and vehicles

Land
At valuation  4,810 4,150

 4,810 4,150

Buildings  
At cost 4,741 4,508
Accumulated depreciation (398)  (289)

 4,343 4,219

At valuation  2,637 2,832
Accumulated depreciation (179) (228)

 2,458 2,604

Leasehold improvements
At cost 880 880
Accumulated depreciation (557) (381)

 323 499

Plant, Equipment, Computer hardware and software
At cost 941 815
Accumulated depreciation (680) (537)

 261 278

Total property, plant, equipment and vehicles 12,195 11,750
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The revaluation of freehold land and buildings was performed in July 2000 in accordance with an 
independent valuation by the Valuer General’s Ofce (VGO). Fair value has been determined on the basis 
of current market buying values. The valuation was made in accordance with a regular policy of annual 
revaluation. The land valuation gure for Customs House was not used as it reected a diminished value 
from the previous year. This issue is being discussed with the VGO. The building valuations for King 
Street differ from the value shown in the statements due to internal building improvements not assessed 
as part of the kerbside valuation. The land in respect of 51 – 53 & 58 James Street has not been brought 
to account as a controlled asset. Due to the redevelopment of the Perth Cultural Centre and the review 
of the Ministry under the Machinery of Government, issues in relation to the valuation for this land will 
be taken up with the VGO. 

15. Property, plant, equipment and vehicles con’t
Reconciliations

 Land  Buildings  Leasehold   Plant, Equipment,  Total 
   improvements Computer hardware
    and software
 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2001     

Carrying amount at 
start of year 4,150 6,822 499 257 11,750

Additions   233  128 361

Disposals/Transfers     (22)

Revaluation increments/
(decrement)  660 (74)   586

Depreciation   (180) (176) (124) (480)

Write-off of assets

Carrying amount at       
end of year 4,810 6,801 323 261 12,195

2000     

Carrying amount 
at start of year 3,740 6,871 675 312 11,598

Additions  157  106 263

Disposals    (73) (73)

Revaluation 
increments 410    410

Depreciation  (205) (176) (67) (448)

Carrying amount at      
end of year 4,150 6,823 499 278 11,750
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 2001 2000 

 $000 $000

16. Provisions

Current
Annual leave 1,405 1,429
Long service leave 2,451 1,529

 3,856 2,958

Non-current  
Long service leave 1,474 2,179

 1,474 2,179

Employee Entitlements

The aggregate employee entitlement liability recognised and included in the nancial statements is 
as follows:

Provision for employee entitlements:
Current 3,856 2,958
Non-current 1,474 2,179

 5,330 5,137

17. Grants payable & Commitments

Grants contract issued but not paid

Contractual commitments made with 
Department clients prior to June 30

Grant liabilities 12,160 8,753

Commitments

Commitments in respect of triennially 
funded arts agencies where contracts 
have been let at 30 June. These have 
not been brought to account as liabilities 
as they do not meet the recognition 
criteria AAS 29

 12,185 9,313

18. Equity

Liabilities exceed assets for the Ministry and there is, therefore, no residual interest in the assets of 
the Ministry. This deciency arises through expenses such as depreciation and accrual of employee 
entitlements for leave not involving the payment of cash in the current period being recognised in 
the Statement of Financial Performance. Funding for the Ministry is mainly through appropriation on 
a cash basis. This situation reverses when appropriated cash is used to purchase assets or pay out 
accrued liabilities. 

Asset revaluation reserve
Opening balance 791 381
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):  
Land 660 410
Buildings (74) 0

Closing balance 1,377 791
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 2001 2000
 $000 $000

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record 
increments and decrements on the revaluation of 
non-current assets, as described in accounting 
policy note 2(l).

Accumulated surplus/(deciency)
Opening balance (967) (809)
Change in net assets resulting from operations (2,283) (158)

Closing balance (3,250) (967)

19. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, 
cash includes cash at bank, amounts in suspense 
and restricted cash. Cash at the end of the 
nancial year as shown in the Statement of Cash 
Flows is reconciled to the related items in the 
Statement of Financial Position as follows:

 2001 2000 
 $000 $000

Cash assets (refer to Note 13) 2,872 1,413

(c) Reconciliation of net cost of services to 
net cash ows provided by/(used in) 
operating activities

Net cost of services (73,518) (68,850)

Non-cash items:  

Depreciation 480 539
Doubtful debts 24 0
Superannuation (liability assumed by Trsr) 1,444 2,600
Resources received free of charge 85 20
Appropriation transferred (601) 26,104
Assets transferred 0 24
Other 0 60
(Increase)/decrease in assets:  
Receivables (II) (79) (159)
Prepayments 1 (1)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:  
Payables (II) 14 (37)
Grants payable 3,407 (743)
Accrued salaries 65 174
Employee entitlements 193 120
Change in GST in receivables/payables(I) (110) 0

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  (68,595)  (40,149)

(I) This reverses out the GST in accounts receivable and payable.

(II) Note that ATO receivable/payable in respect of GST and receivable/payable in respect of the sale/
purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they are not reconciling items.
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 2001 2000

 $000 $000

20. Resources provided free of charge

During the year the following resources were provided to other agencies free of charge. The amounts 
shown represent the payment of salaries and other expenses by the Ministry on behalf of the following 
agencies:

Library and Information Service of WA 10,054 9,948
Western Australian Museum 7,223 6,248
Art Gallery of WA 2,450 2,187
ScreenWest 1,525 1,827
Perth Theatre Trust 596 1,177

 21,848 21,387

21. Commitments for expenditure

(a) Operating Lease commitments
The Ministry has operating leases for motor 
vehicles. These are cancellable leases in terms 
of Australian Accounting Standard AAS 17 

“Accounting for Leases”

The total of motor vehicle lease expenses 
included in the net cost of services for the year is: 36 21

Within 1 year 22 6
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 7 0

 29 8

22. Events Occurring After Reporting Date

The Machinery of Government Taskforce was established in March 2001 to report to government on a 
program to enhance the service delivery of the public sector. As recommended by the taskforce, the 
Ministry will be renamed the Department of Culture and the Arts from 1 July 2001. The reorganisations 
of agencies as recommended by the taskforce, will result in the review of the relationship between the 
Ministry and the statutory Boards within the arts and culture portfolio. A portfolio management team 
will be established to discuss cross portfolio issues, approve and implement changes in the delivery 
of support services or any other processes in the portfolio where mutual benets can be realised. 
The Taskforce also recommended the establishment of the State Records Ofce as a division of the 
renamed Ministry of Culture and the Arts. This will come into effect when the State Records Act 
is proclaimed in 2001/02. Presently the State Records Ofce is a division of the Library Board of 
Western Australia.

23. Explanatory Statement

The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and Revenue Estimates discloses appropriations 
and other statutes expenditure estimates, the actual expenditures made and revenue estimates and 
payments into the Consolidated Fund, all on a cash basis.

The following explanations are provided in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 945. Signicant 
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $ 500,000.

(i) Signicant variations where actual expenditures exceeded or were less than estimates for the nancial 
year.



Ministry For Culture & The Arts: Annual Report 2000 – 2001 100 

Financial Statements

 2001 2001 
 Estimate Actual Variation
 $000 $000 $000

RECURRENT

Amount provided to fund Outputs  30,670 32,190 1,520

The variance in this item is a combination of 
supplementary funding provided for the major 
performing arts inquiry, ($1,781,000), promotion 
of the CATS regional tour ($200,000), repayment 
of interest on a treasurer’s advance account 
($113,000) less a budget transfer between the 
Ministry’s appropriation and the appropriation for 
the Library Board.

Library Board of WA 13,912 14,450 538

The variance mainly relates to a budget transfer 
of $550,000 between the Ministry’s appropriation 
and the appropriation for the Library Board.

Perth Theatre Trust 1,877 2,480 603

The increase relates to supplementary funding 
provided for the management of the Swan Bells 
Belltower.

Western Australian Museum 3,107 3,604 497

The variance mainly relates to supplementary 
funding provided to meet pension fund payments. 

Amount Authorised by Other Statute 
– Lotteries Commission Act 1990 8,400 8,984 584

The variance is a result of higher than expected 
sales by the Lotteries Commission. 

OUTPUTS

Recurrent Expenditure

Arts Industry Support 13,921 16,461 2,540

The variance is mainly the result of 
supplementary funding provided for the major 
performing arts inquiry, ($1,781,000), promotion 
of the CATS regional tour ($200,000) and 
additional funding from the Lotteries Commission 
($584,000). 

Venue Management Services 3,063 3,666 603

The increase relates to supplementary funding 
provided for the management of the Swan Bells 
Belltower.
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 2001 2001 
 Estimate Actual Variation
 $000 $000 $000

Operating Revenues 8,400 8,984 584
The variance is a result of higher than expected 
sales by the Lotteries Commission. 

(ii) Signicant variations between actual outputs 
for the nancial year and outputs for the 
immediately preceding nancial year.

In the interests of concise reporting, variations 
between this year and last year that have already 
been explained in the previous notes have not 
been repeated in this section

RECURRENT

Amount provided to fund Outputs  32,190 29,896 2,294
The variance in this item is mainly the result of 
supplementary funding provided in 2000/01 for 
the major performing arts inquiry, ($1,781,000), 
promotion of the CATS regional tour ($200,000), 
repayment of interest on a treasurer’s advance 
account ($113,000).

Perth Theatre Trust 2,480 1,263 1,217
The variance in this item is mainly the result of 
supplementary funding provided in 2000/01 for 
the management of the Swan Bells Belltower and 
a change in the salaries budget for 2000/01.

Western Australian Museum 3,604 2,928 676
The variance in this item relates to additional 
funding provided in the 2000/01 budget for the 
new Maritime and Geraldton museums.

OUTPUTS

Recurrent Expenditure
Museum Services 11,738 9,889 1,849
The variance is mainly the result of additional 
recurrent funding in the 2000/01 budget for the 
new Maritime museum ($1,500,000) and the new 
Geraldton museum ($150,000).

Arts Industry Support 16,461 14,301 2,160

The variance is mainly the result of 
supplementary funding provided for the major 
performing arts inquiry, ($1,781,000), promotion 
of the CATS regional tour ($200,000) and 
additional funding from the Lotteries Commission 
($299,000).

Venue Management Services 3,666 3,047 619

The variance in this item is mainly the result of 
supplementary funding provided in 2000/01 for 
the management of the Swan Bells Belltower and 
a change in the salaries budget for 2000/01.
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24. Financial Instruments

(a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure

The following table details the Department’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the reporting date:

Fixed Interest Rate Maturity

 Weighted Variable  Less 1 to 5 More Non - Total
 Average  Interest than 1 Years Than 5 Interest 
 Effective  Rate Year`  Years Bearing
 Interest 
 Rate

2001 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Financial Assets       

Cash assets      2,872 2,872
Receivables       1,221 1,221
Prepayments      28 28

Total Financial Assets      4,121 4,121

Financial Liabilities       

Accounts Payables      98 98
Accrued Salaries      601 601
Employee Entitlements      5,330 5,330
Grants Payable      12,160 12,160

Total Financial Liabiities      18,189 18,189

Net Financial Liabilities      (1,873) (1,873)

2000

Financial assets      2,555 2,555
Financial liabilities      14,510 14,510

(b) Credit Risk Exposure

The Ministry has limited credit risk exposure. The carrying amount of nancial assets recorded in 
the nancial statements, other than debt receivables, represents the Ministry’s maximum exposure 
to credit risk. The Ministry’s main debtor in the above table is the Lotteries Commission. Amounts 
owing by other government agencies are guaranteed and therefore no credit risk exists in respect 
of these amounts.

(c) Net Fair Values

The carrying amount of nancial assets and nancial liabilities recorded in the nancial statements are 
not materially different from their net fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies 
disclosed in note 2 to the nancial statements.
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25. Remuneration and Retirement Benefits of Senior Officers

Remuneration 

The number of senior ofcers, whose total of fees, salaries and other benets received, or due and 
receivable, for the nancial year, fall within the following bands are:

 $ 2001 2000

 60,001 – 70,000 0 1
 70,001 – 80,000 0 0
 80,001 – 90,000 1 0
 90,001 – 100,000 1 1
 100,001 – 110,000  1 2
 110,001 – 120,000 2 0
 120,001 – 130,000 1 1
 130,001 – 140,000 0 0
 140,001 – 150,000 0 1
 150,001 – 160,000 1 0
 160,001 – 170,000 0 1

  $000 $000

The total remuneration of senior ofcers is: 789 797

Retirement Benefits

No senior ofcer was paid retirement benets.

Redundancy Payments

No redundancy payment was made.  0 0

Contributions to External Scheme

1. Total notional contributions to Gold State
Superannuation Scheme and West State 
Superannuation Scheme 67 48

2. Contributions to other superannuation funds 0 0

No senior ofcers are members of the Superannuation and Family Benets Act Scheme.

26. Related Bodies

The Ministry has no related bodies.

27. Affiliated Bodies

In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 951, the details of nancial assistance provided to non-
government afliated bodies are shown in the table below. A full list showing details of all grants 
provided to non-government bodies has been included in the grants lists attached to and forming 
part of the annual report. 
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Afliated Body 2001
 $

Artists’ Foundation of WA 292,917
Australian Dance Council 112,535
Community Arts Network 434,413
Crafts Council of WA 314,044
Perth Theatre Company 445,414
PICA 334,866
WA Opera Company 926,500

28. Trust Accounts

Private Trust Account

Arts Lotteries Account Trust Account

This Trust Account was established to account for funds received from the Lotteries Commission 
pursuant to sections 22(2)(d) of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990. Payments are made in such 
proportion and among such bodies engaged in the conduct of cultural activities, and persons engaged 
in cultural activities in the State, as the Minister for the Arts thinks t.

 2001 2000 
 $ $

Opening balance at 1 July 445,900 1,311,132
Receipts
Refunds of Grants 0 40,875

Funding under the Lotteries Commission 
Act 1990

Contribution from Consolidated Fund 8,984,000 8,685,000

TOTAL RECEIPTS 8,984,000 8,725,875

TOTAL FUNDS 9,429,900  10,037,00

Payments

Grants and Projects for Cultural Activities 7,864,266  9,591,107

TOTAL PAYMENTS 7,864,266 9,591,107

CLOSING BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 1,565,634 445,900

The closing balance forms part of the Ministry bank account held at the Commonwealth Bank.

Partnership Coordination Account

This Trust Account was established so that funds contributed by other governmental bodies can 
re-imburse the Ministry for Culture & the Arts for outlays it incurs in coordinating joint activities and 
projects. The projects were nalised in 1999/2000 and this trust account ceased from 30 June 2000.

Opening balance at 1 July 0 56,714
Receipts: 0 0
Payments: 0 (56,714)

Closing balance 0 0
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29. Supplementary Information

Write-Offs

During the nancial year $34,000 of bad debts was written off under the authority of:

 2001 2000 
 $000 $000

The Accountable Ofcer 4 0

The Minister 30 0

Executive Council 0 0

 34 0

No amounts were written off the Ministry’s 
Asset Register. 

There were no losses through theft, 
defaults and other causes 0 0

There were no gifts of public property 
provided by the Ministry. 0 0

30. Administered Transactions, Assets and Liabilities

Administered assets and liabilities are not controlled by the Ministry but are administered by it on 
behalf of the Government.

The items shown in these statements relate to payments to the Western Australian Museum Foundation.

The Government has made a commitment to the Western Australian Museum Foundation to provide 
$600,000 each year over ve years on a $ for $ basis to match moneys raised by the Foundation 

through fund raising activities. $224,010 was raised by the WA Museum Foundation in 2000/01.

Administered Expenses and Revenues

 2001 2000 
 $000 $000

Expenses
Grants and subsidies 600 600 

Total administered expenses 600 600 

Revenues
Appropriations 600 600 

Total administered revenues 600 600 

Administered Assets and Liabilities

Current Assets
Cash 1,351 1,127 

Total administered assets 1,351 1,127 

Current Liabilities
Grants Payable 1,351 1,127 

Total administered liabilities 1,351 1,127 




